S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP Sector 44, Gurugram - 122 003
Chartered Accountants Haryana, India

Tel: +91 124 681 6000

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Awfis Space Solutions Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Awfis Space Solutions Private Limited
(hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company™), its subsidiary (the Holding Company and its subsidiary together
referred to as “the Group™) comprising of the consolidated Balance sheet as at March 31, 2023, the consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss, including other comprehensive income, the consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the
consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as
“the consolidated financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the
consideration of reports of other auditor on separate financial statements and on the other financial information of the
subsidiary, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013,
as amended (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India. of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2023, their
consolidated loss including other comprehensive income, their consolidated cash flows and the consolidated statement
of changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs),
as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
“Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the *Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions
of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Other Information

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Director’s report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in terms of the requirements of the Act that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position, consolidated financial performance including other comprehensive income, consolidated cash flows and
consolidated statement of changes in equity of the Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. The respective Board of Directors of the
companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of their respective companies and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation
of the consolidated financial statements by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the Companies included in the
Group are responsible for assessing the ability of their respective companies to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are also responsible for overseeing the
financial reporting process of their respective companies.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

+  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our
opinion on whether the Holding Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.
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«  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and. based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

«  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures. and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

+  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group of which we are the independent auditors, to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial
statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent
auditors. For the other entity included in the consolidated financial statements, which has been audited by other
auditor, such other auditor remains responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried
out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matter

(a) We did not audit the financial statements and other financial information, in respect of one subsidiary, whose
financial statements include total assets of Rs 47.63 lakhs as at March 31, 2023, and total revenues of Rs Nil and
net cash inflows of Rs 21.13 lakhs for the vear ended on that date. These financial statement and other financial
information have been audited by other auditors, whose financial statements, other financial information and
auditor’s reports have been furnished to us by the management. Our opinion on the consolidated financial
statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of this subsidiary, and our report
in terms of sub-sections (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiary, is based
solely on the report of such other auditor.

Our opinion above on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of
the other auditors and the financial statements and other financial information certified by the Management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™), issued by the Central Government of
India in terms of sub-section (11} of section 143 of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of report of
the other auditor on separate financial statements and the other financial information of the subsidiary company,
incorporated in India, as noted in the *Other Matter’ paragraph, we give in the “Annexure 17 a statement on the matters
specified in paragraphs 3(xxi) of the Order.
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2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of report of the other auditor on
separate financial statements and the other financial information of subsidiary. as noted in the *other matter” paragraph,
we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(H)

We/the other auditors whose report we have relied upon have sought and obtained all the information and
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidation
of the financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books and reports of
the other auditors:

The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of
the consolidated financial statements;

In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended:

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on March 31,
2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the report of the statutory auditor
who are appointed under Section 139 of the Act, of its subsidiary company. none of the directors of the Group's
companies incorporated in India is disqualified as on March 31. 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms
of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements
of the Holding Company and its subsidiary company incorporated in India, and the operating effectiveness of such
controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 27 to this report:

The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the Holding Company., its
subsidiary incorporated in India for the year ended March 31, 2023

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule I of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules. 2014, as amended. in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of the report of the other auditor on
separate financial statements as also the other financial information of the subsidiary. as noted in the *Other matter’
paragraph:

i.  The Group does not have any pending litigations which would impact its consolidated financial position:

ii.  The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses in long-term contracts including derivative
contracts during the year ended March 31, 2023;

iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Holding Company. its subsidiary incorporated in India during the year ended
March 31, 2023.

iv.  a) The respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary which are companies
incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act have represented to us
and the other auditors of such subsidiary respectively that, to the best of its knowledge and belief. no
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any
other sources or kind of funds) by the Holding Company or any of such subsidiary to or in any other
person or entity. including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”). with the understanding. whether recorded




S.R. BATLIBOI1 & ASSOCIATES LLP

Chartered Accountants

vi.

in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the respective Holding
Company or any of such subsidiary (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary which are companies
incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act have represented to us
and the other auditors of such subsidiary respectively that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been received by the respective Holding Company or any of such subsidiary from any person
or entity, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Holding Company or any of such subsidiary shall, whether, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

¢) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances performed by us and that performed by the auditors of the subsidiary which are companies
incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, nothing has come to
our or other auditor’s notice that has caused us or the other auditors to believe that the representations
under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material mis-statement.

No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Holding Company, its subsidiary
companies, incorporated in India.

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable only w.e.f. April 1, 2023
for the Holding Company, its subsidiary company incorporated in India, hence reporting under this clause
is not applicable.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

Rl Aggauraf/

per Nikhil Aggar\‘vﬁl

Partner

Membership Number: 504274

UDIN: 23504274BGXRGW7458

A

Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: September 27, 2023



S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP

Chartered Accountants

Annexure 1 to the Auditor’s Report referred to in paragraph |1] of “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements” in our report of even date

Re: Awfis Space Solutions Private Limited (“the Company™)

XXi. Qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in the Companies (Auditors Report) Order
(CARO) reports of the companies included in the consolidated financial statements are:

SNo Name CIN Holding Clause number of the
company/ CARO report which is
subsidiary/ qualified or is adverse
associate/  joint
venture

1 Awfis U74999DL2014PTC274236 | Holding vii a)

Space Company
Solutions

Private

Limited

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049 W/E300004

Bicwif Amae~€
per Nikhil Aggarw'a!
Partner

Membership Number: 504274

UDIN: 25504274BGXRGW7458

Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: September 27, 2023
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AWFIS SPACE SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMTED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act™)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of Awfis Space Solutions Private Limited as of
and for the year ended March 31, 2023, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Awfis
Space Solutions Private Limited (hereinafter referred to as the “Holding Company™)} which is incorporated in India. as
of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the of the Holding Company which is the company incorporated in India, are responsible for
establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Holding Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India. These responsibilities include the design. implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business. including
adherence to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Respaonsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based
on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing, both, issued by Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India, and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act. to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement. including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion
on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not
be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because
of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Holding Company, which is company incorporated in India, have, maintained in all material respects,
an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Holding Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049 W/E300004

ke Asqound
per Nikhil Aggarwél

Partner
Membership Number: 504274

UDIN: 23504274BGXRGW7458

Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: September 27, 2023



Awfis Spuce Sulations Private Limited

Consolidated Balanee Sheet as at March 31, 2023

CIN No. UT4009DL2NI4PTC274236
(A amounts in Bs, Tukhs, unless otherwise stated)

e gz - As at As at
Particulars s Mareh 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
ASSETS
Non-current assets
(#)  Property. plant and equipment Ala) M4.713.83 12,008.46
(b)) Capital work-in-progress Siby 44.55 R6v.17
(d)  Right-of-use assets 5{c) & 38 40,445.64 21,865.08
fe)  Other intangible asscls oA 128.70 #4.41
(e} Intangible assets under development 63 2.3 -
(¢)  Finaneial asscls
(1) Tnvestments 7 - -
(i} Other financial assets 9 8.976.05 5.913.60
(A Non-current tax assets (net) 1 261215 1,285.71
(g)  Other non-current asscls I 2,244,621 167008
Total nun-current assets 79.197.85 43,756.60
Current asscis
(a)  Invenlorics 12 39.46 53.57
{b)  Contract assets B 578.55 T04.50
(e} Financial assels
(i) Investments 7 - 1,639.40
(i) Trade receivables 3 4847 88 3071.66
(iil)  Cush and cash equivalents 13 559.98 530.72
(iv]  Bank Balance other than cash and cash equivalenis 14 1.250.03 32.64
{v)  Other financial assets 9 1,917,72 1,854.82
{d)  Other current assets 11 4,668.99 4,324 81
Total current assels 13,862.61 12,212.12
Total assets 93.000.46 55,968.72
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
{a)  Equity share capital 15 30341 3,013.41
(b} Other equity 16 13.923.00 6,458.72
Total equity 16,936.41 9,472.13
Liabilitics
Non-current liabilities
(a)  Fimancial Liabilitics
{1} Borrowing 17 396,86 TRO.7T
(ii)  Lease liabilities I8 37,699.04 19,219.92
(i) Other financial liabilities 19 7.579.19 3,713.34
{b)  Net employee defined benefit liabilities | ¥(a) 161.53 155.70
(¢} Other non-current liahilitics 21(h) 2,241.82 1,321.81
Totul Non-current liabilities 48,078.44 25,191.54
Current liabilities
ta)  Contract liabilitics 21(a) 1,433.02 903.99
(b} Fimancial liabilitics
(i}  Borrowing 17 695,38 429 85
(i} Lease liabilities 38 11,196.35 9,374.78
(i)  Trade payables 20
- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises; 21.39 42.24
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises; 5,061.36 4,469.37
(v} Other Dinancial liabilitics 19 7.623.31 4,802.79
{c)  Netemployee defined benefit liabilities 18{a) 7384 41.81
(d)  Provisions 18{b) 2H6.36 206.42
{e)  Other current liabilities 21 1.653.80 94380
Total current liabilitics 28,045.61 21,305.05
Total equity and liabilities 93,060.46 55.968.72

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

As per our report of even date attached

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
TCAT firm registration no.: 101049W/E300004

per Nikhil Aggarwal i

Partner
Membership no. 504274

Place: New Delhi
Date: Seprember 27, 2023

/
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
of Awfis Space Solutions Private Limilcd/'

OIM

Ravi Dugar

< _I'.T‘Im:c: New Delhi
NCW DC[..] < ||Date: September 27, 2023

@ugax

Chief Financial Officer

Place: New Delhi
Date: September 27, 2023

Bhagwan Kewal Ramani
Director
DIN: 02988910

Place: New Delhi
Date: September 27, 2023

‘Amit Kuytnar
Compiny Secretary
Membership no. A31237

Place: New Delhi
Date: September 27, 2023



Awfis Space Solutions Private Limited

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2023

CIN No. UT4999DL.2014PTC274236
(Al wmounts in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Notes Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
I Revenue from contract with customers 22 54,528.14 2570453
T Other income 23 2.050.38 2,166,98
11T Total income (1+ 11) 56,578.52 27,871.51
IV Expenses
{a) Sub-contracting cost 9,047.18 4,186.94
(b) Purchases of traded poods 24 1.253.46 434.18
{e) Changes in inventonies of traded goods 25 14.11 {33.100
(d) Employce benefits expense 26 9,579.67 541540
(e) Finance costs 27 7,272.03 487187
() Depreciation and amortisalion expense 28 14,997 87 084339
(g} Other expenses 29 19.077.87 B.B6R.51
Total expenses (IV) 61,242.19 33,587.09
V' Loss before tax (TIT-TV) (4,663.67) (5,715.58)
V1 Income Tax cxpense 39 - -
VI Loss for the year (V - VI) (4,663.67) {5,715.58)
VIII Other comprehensive income
Ttems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:
(a) Remeasurements losses on the defined benefit plans 35 (3.02) (21.15)
(b} Income tax effect 39 = =
Total other comprehensive loss (3.02) (21.15)
IX Total comprehensive loss for the year (VII + VIIT) (4.666.69) (5,736.73)
Earnings per equity share (Face value of Rs.10 each)
(1} Basic (in Rs) 30 {15.48) (18.97)
(2) Diluted (in Rs) 30 (15.48) (18.97)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For 5.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI firm registration no.: 101049W/E300004

@)k.\,;Q Aeﬁ camp

per Nikhil Aggarwal
Partner
Membership no. 504274

Place: New Delhi
Date: September 27, 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
of Awfis Space Solutions Private Limited
o

IN: 00549918

il
i

I J;;\\\ Place: New Delhi
(@]

5 N Date: September 27, 2023
P, j\\ P

Ravi Dugar
Chief Financial Officer

Place: New Delhi
Date: Septemnber 27, 2023

Bhagwan Kewal Ramani
Director
DIN: 02988910

Place: New Delhi
Date: September 27, 2023

Amit Kumar
ompany Secretary
Membership no, A31237

Place: New Delhi
Date: September 27, 2023



Awlis Space Solutions Private Limited

Consolidated statement of cash Oow for the year ended March 31, 2023
CIN No. U74999DL2014PTC274236

(Al amounts 1o Rs lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulirs Year ended Year ended
March 31,2023 March 31,2022

A. Cash flow from operating activities

Net loss before tax for the year {4,663 67) (5,715.58)
Adpsipents for:

Depreciation and amonisation 14,997 87 984329
Employee stock p ion exp 396,07 11166
Gain on fair valuation of mutual funds - (72.8%)
Assets written off 135.30 40.43
Interest income on fixed deposit {122.78) (61.16)
Interest income on fur valuation of security deposits (414.05) (482 34)
Interest income on loan 1o employee (2.62) (8.06)
Rental income on fair value of security deposit {754.69) (434 56)
(Ciain) / Loss on redemption of investments 977 {85.52)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 165,13 -
Interest paid on term loan 136,39 8310
Interest paid on lease liability 6,325.29 421171
Interest paid on fair valuation of security deposit 65285 483,67
COVID-19 related rent concessions - (#5719
Profit on termination of lease {503.96) (27.70)
Profit on modification of lease (138.81)

Provision for doubtful secunty deposits 69.92 22.50
Provision for doubtful capital advane 75.00 -
Interest on optionally ble red ble pref share 113.49 015
Provision for doubtiul debis 44.88 3121
Operating profit before working capital changes 16,521.38 T.048.72

Movements in working capital:

Increase in trade recervables (1.821.11) (1,564.20)
Dy {1 mni ies 14.11 (33.10)
Increase in other financial assets {1,178.39) (1,758.68)
Increase in other assets (784,500 {1,086 46)
Increase in trade payables 37114 1,736.65
Increase in provisions 2478 151.41

| in other fi ial habilit 5,339.02 282469
Increase in other liabilites 2,159.24 1,622.08
Cash generated from operations 20,845.27 8,941.12
Net income tax paid (1,326 44) (671.72)
Net cash flow from operating activities (A) 19,518.83 §,269.40

B. Cash flow from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equig includi n eredi for capital good and capital advance (14.469.18) (6,355.81)
Purchase of intangible assets (102.90) {46.78)
Payment for night of use assets (1,383.65) (447.88)
Proceeds from disposal of propenty, plant and equip 10.05 -
Interest income on loan to employee - 13.98
Investments in fixed deposits with bank (9,645.09) (1,871.50)
Redemption of fixed deposits with bank 6,872.65 513588
Redemption of mutual funds 1.629.63 273266
Interest received on fixed deposit 7.7 11785
Net eash flow from /(used in) investing activities (B) (17,010.78) (721.60)

C. Cash Mow from financing activities

Proceeds from issue of preft shares includi ities | i 11,734.90 -
Payment of prinicipal portion of lease Lability (7.665.66) (4,579.69)
Interest paid on lease liability (6,325.29) {4.277.71)
Interest paid on term loan {104.36) {64.10)
Repayment of borrowings (416.93) (364,12)
Proceeds from borrowings - 1,300.00
Net cash flow used in financing activities (C) (2,777.34) (7.985.62)
Net cash flow (used in)/ from Cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (269.29) {437.82)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 530.72 968.54
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 261.43 530.72
Cash and Cash equivalents comprise
- In current accounts 25818 53036
- In depesit with orginal maturity of less than three months 301 80 -
= Cash on hand - 0.36
- Bank overdraft (295.55) -
261.43 530.72

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these
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Notes:
) The above Cash Flow Sttement has been prepared under the “Indirect Method” as set out in the Indun Ac Standard {Ind AS 7)°S of Cash Flows
2} There are no nen-cash compenents i investing and financing activities during the year
3) Changes i Labilities ansing from financing acivities:
Particulars Asat Cash flow Addition Others* As at

April 1, 2022 net March 31, 2023
Preference shares 13,938.77 555736 * . - 1949613
Borrowings 1,210.62 {521.28) - 104.36 793,69
Lease liabilities {refer note 38) 28,594.70 (13,590.95) 2971742 4,574.22 48,895 39
Particulars Asat Cash flow Addition Others*™ As at

April 1, 2021 {net) March 31, 2022
Borrowimgs 296.67 B71.78 - 4217 1,210.62
Lease habilities (refer note 38) 25,879 86 (13,990.95) 8,333 66 837213 28,594,70

* Praceeds from issue of preference shares is Rs. 11,734 91 which includes securities premium of Rs, 6,177 55, Refer Note 16

** The “Others’ column includes the effect of recl
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AN wvimnts i Ra, Jakle, vnless otherwise staed)

A, Eyquity share capital

Far the year ended March 31, 2023

Fauity sharcs nf Ba. 10 each issued, subseribed and Tolly paid X Number of
Nates Amuount
shares*
Asat | April 2022 3034012 ERIERCH]
Bssue of slir ol 15 - =
As at March 31, 2023 3.013.41
For the year ended Marveh 31, 2022
Equity shares of Rs. 10 cach issued, subseribed and fully paid < Number of
Notes Amaunt
shares*®
Asatl J\p‘j’l ik} 30134012 3013480
Issue of share capital 15 - -
As at March 31, 2022 3,00,34.112 301341
* Number of shares arc stated i absolute terms
B.  Other equity
For the year ended March 31, 2023 Equity component Reserves & Surplus
Equity component
Equity component of  Equity component oF 00061 %
& . 4 &
Particul Lk cu:mukuq i “'ML: f optionally Equity component Retained Sccurities h:n;::'::d Tutal
SRR Sl ‘, 2 EpmpEsany convertible of unsecured lnan carnings premivm pay
cumulative convertible TesCIves
e v redeemahle
L4 pr share

Bal as at April 1, 2022 13,938.77 14.835.09 - 11.94 134,1849.34) 11,341.47 510,79 6,458.72
Tsgued during the year 535701 - 200,335 - - 6,177.54 - 11,734.90
Laoss for the year - = 5 = (4663671 = = (4,663,67)
Other comprehensive income for he year (OCT) - - - - {3.00) - - {3.02)
Uptiens expense gmised during the year - - - - n = 396.07 396,07
Bulance as at March 31, 2023 19,295.78 14,835.09 20035 21.94 138,856.03) 17.519.01 ik R6 13,923.00
For the year ended March 31, 2022 Equity component Reserves & Surplus

Equity component of  Equity component

o, G

0.0001% compulsory of 0,001% Equity componeat Secarifies blufre based Total

Particulurs convertible eompulsory Retulned eurnings payment
4 of unsecured loan premium
comulative convertible FESCIVES
preference share debenture
Balance as ar April 1, 2021 13,938.77 14, 83509 - (28, 452.61) 11,341.47 9913 12,6185
Tssued during the year - - 2154 - - - 2194
Loss for the year - - - {5,715.54) = = (5,715.57)
Other comprehensive ineome for he year (OC]) - - - 121.15) - - {21.15)
Options expense recognised during the year - - - - - 11166 11166
|Balance as at April 1, 2022 13.938.77 14, 83509 1.9 {34,189.34) 11,341.47 510.79 6,458.72
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these lidated i fal - -
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(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, except per share data and as stated otherwise)

Group overview

Awfis Space Solutions Private Limited (the 'Company') was incorporated on December 17, 2014 with its
registered office in New Delhi. The Company along with its wholly owned subsidiary Awliv Living Solutions
Private Limited which was incorporated on June 7, 2016 with its registered office in New Delhi (collectively
referred to as the "Group") is primarily engaged in the business of providing workspace on rent, integrated
facility management income (facility management services) and enterprise workspace designing and building
services (construction and fit-out projects).

The consolidated financial statements were approved for issue in accordance with resolutions of directors on
September 27, 2023,

Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting standards
(Ind AS) as notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time
to time) and presentation requirements of Division II of Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS
Compliant Schedule III), as applicable to the financial statements.

The accounting policies, as set out in the following paragraphs of this note, have been consistently applied
by the Group to all the periods presented in the said financial statements.

The preparation of the said financial statements requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates and
Jjudgements, It also requires the management to exercise judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas where estimates are significant to the financial statements, or areas involving
a higher degree of judgment or complexity, are appropriately disclosed.

All the amounts included in the said financial statements are reported in lakhs of Indian Rupees and are
rounded to the nearest lakh, except per share data and unless stated otherwise.

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the accrual and going concern basis, and the
historical cost convention except where the Ind AS requires a different accounting treatment. The principal
variations from the historical cost convention relate to financial instruments classified as fair value through
profit or loss.

Basis of consolidation
The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared on the following basis:

(i) The consolidation financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with the Ind AS
110 “Consolidated financial statements”, on a line-by-line basis by adding together the book values of like
items of assets, liabilities, income, and expenses, after eliminating intra-Group balances and intra-Group
transactions resulting in unrealized profits or losses. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group (including consideration to
materiality impact, if any).

Subsidiary is entity over which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power to direct the relevant activities of the entity. Subsidiary is fully consolidated
from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. It is deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.
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(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, except per share data and as stated otherwise)

(ii) The difference of the cost of investment in subsidiary over its share in the equity of the investee Group
as at the date of acquisition of stake is recognized in financial statements as Goodwill or Capital Reserve,
as the case may be.

(iii) The Consolidated Financial Statements are presented, to the extent possible, in the same format as
adopted by the Holding Group for its individual financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and under the historical cost
convention, except for the following assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value:

- Investment in mutual funds and venture capital fund measured at fair value [refer accounting policy
2.1(Q) regarding financial instruments],

- Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value

- Share based payments

- Defined benefit plans as per actuarial valuation

Going Concern

The Group has incurred a loss during the year ended March 31, 2023 of Rs 4,666.69 (March 31, 2022: Rs
5,736.73) and has a net current liability position as at March 31, 2023 of Rs 14,183.00 (March 31, 2022: Rs
9,092.93). The board of directors have considered the financial position of the Group at March 31, 2023,
the projected cash flows and financial performance of the Group for at least twelve months from the date of
approval of these financial statements as well as planned cost and cash improvement actions, and believe
that the plan for sustained profitability remains on course. The board of directors have taken actions to
ensure that appropriate long-term cash resources are in place at the date of signing the accounts to fund the
Group's operations. In the view of this, financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported
amount of assets, liabilities, income, expenses and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date
of these financial statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses for the years presented.
Actual results may differ from the estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed at each
balance sheet date. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates
are revised and future periods affected.

Use of estimates and judgements

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting
date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Group based its assumptions and
estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and
assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances
arising that are beyond the control of the Group. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they
occur. Also, the Group has made certain judgements in applying accounting policies which have an effect
on amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements,
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i) Contingencies:

Contingent Liabilities may arise from the ordinary course of business in relation to claims against the
group, including legal and other claims. By virtue of their nature, contingencies will be resolved only when
one or more uncertain future events occur or fail to occur. The assessment of the existence, and potential
quantum, of contingencies inherently involves the exercise of significant judgements and the use of
estimates regarding the outcome of future events.

ii) Defined benefit plans:

The present value of the gratuity and compensated absences are determined using actuarial valuations. An
actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the
future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due
to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly
sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for
plans operated in India, the actuary considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies
consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation. The mortality rate is based on
publicly available mortality tables for the specific countries.

Those mortality tables tend to change only at interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary
increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates for the respective countries.

iii) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment:

The Group reviews the useful life of property, plant and equipment at the end of each reporting period. This
reassessment may result in change in depreciation expense in future periods.

iv) Leases:

Where the Group is the lessee, key judgements include assessing whether arrangements contain a lease and
determining the lease term. To assess whether a contract contains a lease requires judgement about whether
it depends on a specified asset, whether the Group obtains substantially all the economic benefits from the
use of that asset and whether the Group has a right to direct the use of the asset. In order to determine the
lease term judgement is required as extension and termination options have to be assessed along with all
facts and circumstances that may create an economic incentive to exercise an extension option, or not
exercise a termination option. The Group revises the lease term if there is a change in the non-cancellable
period of a lease. Estimates include calculating the discount rate which is generally based on the
incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease being evaluated or for a portfolio of leases with similar
characteristics.

Where the Group is the lessor, the treatment of leasing transactions is mainly determined by whether the
lease is considered to be an operating or finance lease. In making this assessment, management looks at the
substance of the lease, as well as the legal form, and makes a judgement about whether substantially all of
the risks and rewards of ownership are transferred. Arrangements which do not take the legal form of a
lease but that nevertheless convey the right to use an asset are also covered by such assessments. The
management’s estimates and assessments were based in particular on assumptions regarding the
development of the economy as a whole and the development of the basic legal parameters.
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v) Deferred taxes:

Deferred tax assets can be recognized for deductible temporary differences (including unused tax losses)
only to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary difference can be utilized. As the Group is yet to generate profits, management has assessed that
as at March 31, 2023 it is not probable that such deferred tax assets can be realised in excess of available
temporary differences. Management re-assesses unrecognized deferred tax assets at each reporting date and
recognizes to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax
assets to be recovered. For details about deferred tax assets, refer note 39.

vi) Revenue from contract with customers:

The Group has applied judgements that significantly affect the determination of the amount and timing of
revenue from contracts with customers. Refer note 4 (A) for further details,

Summary of significant aceounting policies
A. Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
the revenue can be reliably measured.

Revenue from contracts with customers:

- Revenue is recognized on the basis of approved contracts regarding the transfer of goods or services to a
customer for an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods and services.

- Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable taking into account the
amount of discounts, incentives, volume rebates, outgoing taxes on sales. Any amounts receivable from the
customer are recognised as revenue after the control over the goods sold are transferred to the customer.

- Variable consideration - This includes incentives, volume rebates, discounts etc. It is estimated at
contract inception considering the terms of various schemes with customers and constrained until it is
highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not
occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved. It is
reassessed at the end of each reporting period.

Satisfaction of performance obligations:

An entity shall recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation by transferring a
promised good or service (i.e. an asset) to a customer. An asset is transferred when (or as) the customer
obtains control of that asset. For each performance obligation identified, an entity shall determine at
contract inception whether it satisfies the performance obligation over time or satisfies the performance
obligation at a point in time. If an entity does not satisfy a performance obligation over time, the
performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time.

For performance obligations that an entity satisfies over time, an entity shall disclose both of the following:

(a) the methods used to recognise revenue (for example, a description of the output methods or input
methods used and how those methods are applied); and R
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(b) an explanation of why the methods used provide a faithful depiction of the transfer of goods or services.
For performance obligations satisfied at a point in time, an entity shall disclose the significant judgements
made in evaluating when a customer obtains control of promised goods or services.

Rental income

Revenue is respect of rental services is recognized on an accrual basis, in accordance with the terms of the
respective contract as and when the Group satisfies performance obligations by delivering the services as
per contractual agreed terms.

Integrated facility management income (‘Facility management services®)

Revenue from facility management services is recognized monthly, on accrual basis, in accordance with the
terms of the respective agreement as and when services are rendered.

Enterprise workspace designing and building services (‘Construction and fit-out projects’)

Construction and fit-out projects where the Group is acting as a contractor, revenue is recognized in
accordance with the terms of the construction agreements. Under such contracts, assets created does not
have an alternative use and the Group has an enforceable right to payment.

The Group uses cost based input method for measuring progress for performance obligation satisfied over
time. Under this method, the Group recognizes revenue in proportion to the actual project cost incurred as
against the total estimated project cost. The management reviews and revises its measure of progress
periodically and are considered as change in estimates and accordingly, the effect of such changes in
estimates is recognised prospectively in the period in which such changes are determined. However, when
the total project cost is estimated to exceed total revenues from the project, the loss is recognized
immediately.

As the outcome of the contracts cannot be measured reliably during the early stages of the project, contract
revenue is recognized only to the extent of costs incurred in the statement of profit and loss.

Remote working and work from home solutions

Revenue from sale of furniture and work from home solutions is recognized when all the significant control
of ownership of the goods have been passed to the buyer, usually on delivery of the goods.

Sale of food items

Revenue from sale of food items (goods) is recognised on transfer of control of ownership of goods to the
buyer and when no significant uncertainty exists regarding the amount of consideration that will be derived.

Other services

Revenue from other services is recognized as and when the services are rendered in accordance with the
terms of respective agreements.

B. Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing
costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction of an asset which necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.
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C. Current versus non-current classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.
Assets:

An asset is treated as current when it is:

i} Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

ii) Held primarily for the purpose of trading

iii) Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

iv) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.
Liabilities:
A liability is current when:

(i) It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

(ii) It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

(iii) It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

(iv) There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
Operating Cycle:

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Group’s operating cycle
and other criteria set out in the Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of services
and the time between the rendering of service and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Group
has ascertained its operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of current and non-current
classification of assets and liabilities.

D. Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price at the measurement date at which an asset can be sold or paid to transfer a liability, in
an orderly transaction between market participants. The Group’s accounting policies require, measurement
of certain financial/ non-financial assets and liabilities at fair values (either on a recurring or non-recurring
basis). Also, the fair values of financial instruments measured at amortised cost are required to be disclosed
in the said financial statements.

The Group is required to classify the fair valuation method of the financial/ non-financial assets and
liabilities, either measured or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements, using a three level fair
value hierarchy (which reflects the significance of inputs used in the measurement). Accordingly, the
Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs. G0l
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The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are described below:

Level I: Quoted (unadjusted) prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets
Level 2: Significant inputs to the fair value measurement are directly or indirectly observable
Level 3: Significant inputs to the fair value measurement are unobservable.

E. Property, plant and equipment ('PPE")

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Capital work in progress are stated at cost net of impairment loss, if any. Such
cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term
construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Group depreciates them separately based on their specific useful
lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the
plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and
maintenance costs are recognised in statement of profit or loss as incurred.

Depreciation is recognized on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the respective assets as

under:
S.no. Property, plant and Useful life as prescribed by Estimated useful life (in
equipment: Schedule II of the Companies years)
Act, 2013 (in years)
| Computers 3 A
2 Office equipments 5 5 to 10 years depending upon
the useful life of the
components,
3 Furniture and fixtures 10 10
Vehicles 8 8
5 Leasehold improvements On lease term | 5 to 10 years depending upon
the useful life of the
components.

* Leasehold improvements includes partition works, flooring, fit-out works, civil and painting works,
electrical installations and other components.

Useful life of assets different from prescribed in Schedule II has been estimated by the management
supported by technical assessment.

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and the effect of any changes in estimate is accounted for prospectively.

Effective April 1, 2022, the Group has reviewed the estimated economic useful lives of all components
within the broad category of leasehold improvements and office equipments as specified in the table above
(2022: 5 years) based on the combination of evaluation conducted by an independent consultant identifying
assets which are movable in nature and the management estimate.

The management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the
period over which the assets are likely to be used.
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An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

The Group has measured Property, Plant and equipment at carrying value as recognised in the consolidated
financial statements as on transition date i.e. April 1, 2020 which has become its deemed cost.

F. Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

[ntangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each
reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future
economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as
appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible
assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part
of carrying value of another asset.

Gains or losses arising from de recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit
or loss when the asset is derecognised.

The Group has measured intangible assets at carrying value as recognised in the consolidated financial
statements as on transition date i.e. April 1, 2020 which has become its deemed cost.

G. Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If
any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group estimates the
asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating
unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or Groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into
account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

The Group bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are
prepared separately for each of the Group’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These
budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term
growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year.

Impairment losses, if any, are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.
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H. Foreign currency translations
(i) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the consolidated financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Indian rupee (%), which is the Group’s functional and presentation currency.

(ii) Translations and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates
of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the year end
exchange rates are generally recognised in profit or loss.

Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the statement of profit and loss on a net basis.
I. Inventories

Stock of food items and furniture and other work from home solutions are valued at lower of cost and net
realisable value and cost is determined on first-in-first out ('FIFO') basis.

The cost is determined by considering the purchase price and direct material costs. Net realisable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated cost of completion to make the
sale.

J. Employee benefits
(i) Defined contribution plan

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Group has no
obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Group recognizes contribution
payable to the provident fund scheme as an expenditure, when an employee renders the related service. If
the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the consolidated balance sheet date
exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after
deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for
services received before the consolidated balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the
extent that the prepayment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

(ii) Defined benefit plan

The Group’s net obligation in respect of gratuity is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit
that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods. That benefit is
discounted to determine its present value, and the fair value of any plan assets is deducted. The present
value of the obligation under such defined benefit plan is determined based on actuarial valuation by an
independent actuary using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each period of service as
giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up
the final obligation. The obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The
discount rates used for determining the present value of the obligation under defined benefit plan are based
on the market yields on Government securities as at the consolidated balance sheet date.
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(iif) Compensated absences

Accumulated leaves which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months is treated as short-term
employee benefit. The Group measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that is
expects to pay as a result of unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date. The Group treats
accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond 12 months, as long-term employee benefits for
measurement purpose. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial
valuation using the projected unit-credit method at the year-end. The related re-measurements are
recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which they arise. The Group presents the
entire amount as current liability in consolidated balance sheet since it does not have an unconditional right
to defer its settlement for 12 months after the reporting date.

(iv) Share-based payments

Employees of the Group receives remuneration in the form of share-based payments, whereby employees
render services as consideration for equity instruments. The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined
by the fair value at the date when the grant is made using Black Scholes valuation model. The grant date
fair value of options granted to employees is recognised as employee expense with a corresponding
increase in employee stock options reserve, over the period in which the eligibility conditions are fulfilled
and the employees unconditionally become entitled to the awards. The cumulative expense recognised for
equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the
vesting period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. The statement of profit and loss expense or credit for a period represents the movement in
cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period and is recognised in employee
benefits expense. The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the
computation of diluted earnings per share.

K. Income taxes

The income tax expense comprises of current and deferred income tax. Income tax is recognised in the
statement of profit and loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in the other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the related income tax is also recognised
accordingly.

(i) Current tax

The current tax is calculated on the basis of the tax rates, laws and regulations, which have been enacted or
substantively enacted as at the reporting date. The payment made in excess/(shortfall) of the Group’s
income tax obligation for the period are recognised in the consolidated balance sheet as current income tax
assets/liabilities. Any interest, related to accrued liabilities for potential tax assessments are not included in
Income tax charge or (credit), but are rather recognised within finance costs.

Current income tax assets and liabilities are off-set against each other and the resultant net amount is
presented in the consolidated balance sheet, if and only when, (a) the Group currently has a legally
enforceable right to set-off the current income tax assets and liabilities, and (b) when it relates to income
tax levied by the same taxation authority and where there is an intention to settle the current income tax
balances on net basis.

(ii) Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying values in the restated consolidated summary statement.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable proﬁt will be
available against which the temporary differences can be utilised. r
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The unrecognised deferred tax assets/carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting
date for recoverability and adjusted appropriately. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future
taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Minimum alternate tax (MAT) paid in a year is charged to the statement of profit and loss as current tax.
The Group recognizes MAT credit available as an asset only to the extent that there is convincing evidence
that the Group will pay normal income tax during the specified period, i.e., the period for which MAT
credit is allowed to be carried forward. In the year in which the Group recognizes MAT credit as an asset in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Accounting for Credit Available in respect of Minimum Alternative
Tax under the Income-tax Act, 1961, the said asset is created by way of credit to the statement of profit and
loss and shown as "MAT Credit Entitlement". The Group reviews the "MAT credit entitlement" asset at
each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent the Group does not have convincing evidence
that it will pay normal tax during the specified period.

L. Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Where the Group is the lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets. The Group recognizes lease liabilities to make lease payments and
right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

(i) Right-of-use assets

The Group recognizes right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of
right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognized, initial direct costs incurred, and lease
payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-ofuse assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the
exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset,

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment.
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(ii) Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognizes lease liabilities measured at the present value
of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in
substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an
index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also
include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to
terminate, Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognized as expenses
(unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers
the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After
the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if
there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future
payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in
the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

(iii) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and
equipment (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and
do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to
leases of office equipment that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets are recognized as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Where the Group is the lessor

Leases in which the Group transfers substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset are
classified as finance leases. Assets given under finance lease are recognized as a receivable at an amount
equal to the net investment in the lease. After initial recognition, the Group apportions lease rentals
between the principal repayment and interest income so as to achieve a constant periodic rate of return on
the net investment outstanding in respect of the finance lease. The interest income is recognized in the
statement of profit and loss.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset
are classified as operating leases. Assets subject to operating leases are included in property, plant and
equipment. Management recognised lease income on an operating lease is recognized in the statement of
profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term on reasonable basis. Costs, including
depreciation, are recognized as an expense in the statement of profit and loss. Contingent rents are
recognized as revenue in the period in which they are earned.
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M. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders (after deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number
of equity shares outstanding during the period. Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an
equity share to the extent that they are entitled to participate in dividends relative to a fully paid equity
share during the reporting period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
period is adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue, share split, and reverse
share split (consolidation of shares) that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a
corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to
equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted
for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

N. Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets
Provision

A provision is recognized when the Group has a present obligation as a result of past event, it is probable
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are not discounted to their present
value and are determined based on the best estimate required to settle the obligation at the reporting date.
These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control
of the Group or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases
where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably, The Group does
not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the consolidated financial statements.
Contingent assets

Contingent Assets are disclosed, where the inflow of economic benefits is probable.

0. Cash and cash equivalents

The Group considers all highly liquid financial instruments, which are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash that are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value and having original maturities of
three months or less from the date of purchase, to be cash equivalents.

P. Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.
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(i) Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

At initial recognition, financial asset is measured at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at
fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed
in profit or loss.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following categories:

a) at amortized cost; or
b) at fair value through other comprehensive income; or
c) at fair value through profit or loss.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows,

Amortized cost

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest are measured at amortized cost. Interest income from these financial
assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate method (EIR).

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the
assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income (FVTOCI). Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except
for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses
which are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss. When the financial asset is derecognized, the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCI is reclassified from equity to Statement of Profit and
Loss and recognized in other gains/ (losses). Interest income from these financial assets is included in other
income using the effective interest rate method.

Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortized cost or FVTOCI are measured at fair value through profit
or loss. Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income,

Equity instruments:

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are
held for trading and contingent consideration recognized by an acquirer in a business combination to which
Ind AS103 applies are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Group may make an
irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The
Group makes such election on an instrument- by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial
recognition and is irrevocable. : -
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If the Group decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI
to P&L, even on sale of investment. However, the Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within

equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognized in the profit and loss.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments, the Group applies expected credit loss (ECL) model
for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on financial assets that are measured at amortized cost
and FVTOCI.

For recognition of impairment loss on financial assets and risk exposure, the Group determines that whether
there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not
increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has
increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If in subsequent years, credit quality of the instrument
improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the
entity reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12 month ECL.

Life time ECLs are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected
life of a financial instrument. The 12 month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default
events that are possible within 12 months after the year end.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e. all shortfalls), discounted at the
original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider all contractual terms of the
financial instrument (including prepayment, extension etc.) over the expected life of the financial
instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected life of the financial instrument cannot be estimated
reliably, then the entity is required to use the remaining contractual term of the financial instrument.

In general, it is presumed that credit risk has significantly increased since initial recognition if the payment
is more than 30 days past due.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the year is recognized as income/expense
in the statement of profit and loss. In consolidated balance sheet ECL for financial assets measured at
amortized cost is presented as an allowance, i.e. as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the
consolidated balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write off
criteria, the Group does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

A financial asset is derecognized only when:

a) the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset is transferred or

b) retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual
obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

(ii) Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value thmugh profit or
loss and at amortlzec[ cost, as appropriate.
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All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of borrowings and payables, net
of directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized
cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss when the
liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process. Amortized cost is calculated
by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability.
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss as
finance costs.

Q. Segment reporting

The Group has the policy of reporting the segments in a manner consistent with the internal reporting
provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM). The chief operating decision maker is
considered to be the Board of Directors who makes strategic decisions and is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments.

R. Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

New and amended standards

The Group applied for the first-time certain standards and amendments, which are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after April 1, 2022.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Amendment
Rules 2022 dated March 23, 2022, to amend the following Ind AS which are effective from April 1, 2022.

(i) Onerous Contracts — Costs of Fulfilling a Contract — Amendments to Ind AS 37
An onerous contract is a contract under which the unavoidable of meeting the obligations under the contract

costs (i.e., the costs that the Group cannot avoid because it has the contract) exceed the economic benefits
expected to be received under it.
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The amendments specify that when assessing whether a contract is onerous or loss-making, an entity needs
to include costs that relate directly to a contract to provide goods or services including both incremental
costs (e.g., the costs of direct labour and materials) and an allocation of costs directly related to contract
activities (e.g., depreciation of equipment used to fulfil the contract and costs of contract management and
supervision). General and administrative costs do not relate directly to a contract and are excluded unless
they are explicitly chargeable to the counterparty under the contract.

The amendment had no impact on the Group as there were no contracts for which the Group had not
fulfilled all of its obligations at the beginning of the reporting period.

(ii) Reference to the Conceptual Framework — Amendments to Ind AS 103

The amendments replaced the reference to the ICAI's “Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of
Financial Statements under Indian Accounting Standards” with the reference to the “Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting under Indian Accounting Standard” without significantly changing its
requirements.

The amendments also added an exception to the recognition principle of Ind AS 103 Business
Combinations to avoid the issue of potential ‘day 2’ gains or losses arising for liabilities and contingent
liabilities that would be within the scope of Ind AS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets or Appendix C, Levies, of Ind AS 37, if incurred separately. The exception requires entities to apply
the criteria in Ind AS 37 or Appendix C, Levies, of Ind AS 37, respectively, instead of the Conceptual
Framework, to determine whether a present obligation exists at the acquisition date.

The amendments also add a new paragraph to IFRS 3 to clarify that contingent assets do not qualify for
recognition at the acquisition date.

These amendments had no impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group as there were no
contingent assets, liabilities or contingent liabilities within the scope of these amendments that arose during
the period.

(iii) Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use — Amendments to Ind AS 16

The amendments modified paragraph 17(e) of Ind AS 16 to clarify that excess of net sale proceeds of items
produced over the cost of testing, if any, shall not be recognised in the profit or loss but deducted from the
directly attributable costs considered as part of cost of an item of property, plant, and equipment.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after April 1, 2022. These
amendments had no impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group as there were no sales of
such items produced by property, plant and equipment made available for use on or after the beginning of
the earliest period presented.

(iv) Ind AS 101 First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards — Subsidiary as a first-time
adopter

The amendment permits a subsidiary that elects to apply the exemption in paragraph D16(a) of Ind AS 101
to measure cumulative translation differences for all foreign operations in its financial statements using the
amounts reported by the parent, based on the parent’s date of transition to Ind AS, if no adjustments were
made for consolidation procedures and for the effects of the business combination in which the parent
acquired the subsidiary. This amendment is also available to an associate or joint venture that uses
exemption in paragraph D16(a) of Ind AS 101.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after April 1, 2022 but do not
apply to the Group as it is not a first-time adopter.
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(v) Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments — Fees in the 10 per cent’ test for derecognition of financial
liabilities

The amendment clarifies the fees that an entity includes when assessing whether the terms of a new or
modified financial liability are substantially different from the terms of the original financial liability. These
fees include only those paid or received between the borrower and the lender, including fees paid or
received by either the borrower or lender on the other’s behalf.

In accordance with the transitional provisions, the Group applies the amendment to financial liabilities that
are modified or exchanged on or after the beginning of the annual reporting period in which the entity first
applies the amendment (the date of initial application). These amendments had no impact on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group as there were no modifications of the Group’s financial
instruments during the period.

(vi) Ind AS 41 Agriculture — Taxation in fair value measurements

The amendment removes the requirement in paragraph 22 of Ind AS 41 that entities exclude cash flows for
taxation when measuring the fair value of assets within the scope of Ind AS 41.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after April 1, 2022. The
amendments had no impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group as it did not have assets in
scope of IAS 41 as at the reporting date.

S. Standards Notified but not yet effective

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment
Rules, 2023 dated March 31, 2023 to amend the following Ind AS which are effective from April 01, 2023.

(i) Definition of Accounting Estimates - Amendments to Ind AS 8

The amendments clarify the distinction between changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting
policies and the correction of errors. It has also been clarified how entities use measurement techniques and
inputs to develop accounting estimates.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023 and apply to
changes in accounting policies and changes in accounting estimates that occur on or after the start of that
period.

The amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Group’s financial statements.

(i) Disclosure of Accounting Policies - Amendments to Ind AS 1

The amendments aim to help entities provide accounting policy disclosures that are more useful by
replacing the requirement for entities to disclose their ‘significant’ accounting policies with a requirement
to disclose their ‘material’ accounting policies and adding guidance on how entities apply the concept of
materiality in making decisions about accounting policy disclosures.

The amendments to Ind AS | are applicable for annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023.
Consequential amendments have been made in Ind AS 107.

The Group is currently revisiting their accounting policy information disclosures to ensure consistency with
the amended requirements. ¢ e
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(iii) Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction - Amendments
to Ind AS 12

The amendments narrow the scope of the initial recognition exception under Ind AS 12, so that it no longer
applies to transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences.

The amendments should be applied to transactions that occur on or after the beginning of the earliest
comparative period presented. In addition, at the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented, a
deferred tax asset (provided that sufficient taxable profit is available) and a deferred tax liability should also
be recognised for all deductible and taxable temporary differences associated with leases and
decommissioning obligations. Consequential amendments have been made in Ind AS 101. The amendments
to Ind AS 12 are applicable for annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023.

The Group is currently assessing the impact of the amendments.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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S(u)  Property, plant and equipment and capital work-in-progress

Particulars I hold Comy 5 Vehicles Office equipment Furniture & Total Capital work in
improvements Fixtures progress
Gruss Bluck
Ba ¢ ut April 1, 2021 7.259.46 B9.44 .16 1,829.98 2419.7% 11,606.83 13.24
Additions 254842 5598 - 1,326.31 LTSGR 5,101.69 R69.17
Transler of block ol asscts - - - - - - (13,24)
Balance at March 31, 2022 9,807.88 145,41 8.16 3.,156.29 3,590.77 16,708.52 869.17
Additions 9.558.69 3675 4,049 18 1,734.34 16,379.66 44.55
Transfer w block of assets - - - - - - (¥O9.17)
Disposuls / write off -262.91 - - .58 =712 -270.61 -
Balance at March 31, 2023 19.103.66 182.17 .16 7,205.59 6,317,949 JEI.RIT,ST 44.55

Depreciation amd impuirment

Ralanee at April 1, 2021 1,304.83 24.30 1,57 35164 193.74 196608 =
Charge for the year 1,792 85 33.93 1.57 53287 31276 2.673.98 =
Dispasals = - = = - -
Ralance at March 31, 2022 3,187.68 58,23 3.4 H84.51 m} 4i&-4|}.llb =
Charge for the veur 225836 45.05 1.57 702.25 551.88 3.559.11 -
Disposals 45.02 - - -0.06 -0.35 -95.43 -
Balance at March 31, 2023 5,351.02 103.28 4.71 1.586.70 1,058.03 8,103.74 -
Net book value

As at March 31, 2023 13,752.64 T8.89 345 5.618.89 5,259.96 24,713.83 44.55
As at March 31, 2022 6,620.20 87.19 502 227178 3,084.27 12,068.46 869.17
WNotes:

1, On transition to Tnd AS (i.e. April 1, 2020), the Group his elecied 1 continue with the carrying value of all property, plant and equi i as per the p GAAP and use that carrying

value as the deemed cost of property, plant and equipment,

2. Effective April 1, 2022, the Group has reviewed the estimuted economic uselul lves ol sll components within the broad category of leasehold improvements, based on the combination of eviluation
| | by an independ, Itant and i As a result, the depreciation charge for the current year i lower by Rts 1,333.01 lakbs,

S(b)  Capital work in progress (CWIP) Ageing Schedule

As at March 31, 2023 Amount in CWIP for a period of
Particulars Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total
years
Project in progress +4.55 - - - 44.55
Project temporarily suspended - - . - -
44.55 - = - 44.55
As at March 31, 2022 Amount in CWIP for a period of
Particulars Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Tatal
years
Project in progress B69.17 - = & 869,17
Projeet temporarily suspended - - 0 e -
$69.17 - - - B69.17
Mote: There are no projects in progress under capital work-in-progress whose | i Iue or has exceeded its eost compared w its original plan,
S(c) Right-of-use Assets
Building Total
Gross Block
Balance at April 1, 2021 16,070.99 26,070.9%
Additions §.781.53 8,781.53
Modification / termination (54.24) (54.24)
Balance at March 31, 2022 34,798.28 34,798.28
Additions 3100107 31,1107
Modification / termination (1011.04) (1,111.04)
Balanece at March 31, 2023 64,788.31 64,788.31
Depreciation
Balance a1 April 1, 2021 5,781.12 5,781.12
Charge for the year 7.152.09 T152.09
Disposals = i
Balance at March 31, 2022 IIESSS.ZI IZE‘JJJ.ZI
Charge for the year 11,409 456 11,409 46
Disposals - -
Balance at March 31, 2023 24.342.67 24,342.67

Nethook value
As at March 31, 2023 40,445.64 4044564
Asat Mareh 31, 2022 11.865.07 21,865.07
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LS Intangible asseis
Computer Totul
suftware
Cast
Balunee at April 1. 2021 7253 72.53
Additions 678 46,78
Dispossls - -
Bulance at March 31, 2022 119.31 119.31
St
Additions 73.59 73.59
[sposals - -
Balance at March 31, 2023 192,90 192.90
Amartisation and impairment
Balance at April 1, 2021 17.68 17.68
Charge for the year 17.22 17.22
Disposals - -
Balance at March 31, 2022 34.90 34.90
Charge for the year 29.30 2930
Disposals - =
Balance at March 31, 2023 6420 64.20
Net book value
As at March 31, 2023 128.70 128.70
As at March 31, 2022 K441 8441
6B 1 gible assets under develop
Computer Total
suftware
Cost
Balance at April 1, 2021 - -
Charge for the year - -
Disposals - -
Bulance at March 31, 2022 - -
Additions 3231 i
Disprsals = =
Balance at March 31, 2023 231 2.3
Net book value
As at March 31, 2023 23 s
As at March 31, 2022 - -
There is no transier (o block during the yesr ended Mareh 31, 2023
] gible assets under develuy t ageing schedule
As at March 31, 2023 Ampunt in Intangible assets under devel fur a period of
Particulars Less than 1 year 1-2 years 1-3 years Moaore than 3 Taotal
years
Project in progress® 32.31 - - 331
Project temporarily suspended - i - -
3231 - - 3231
As at March 31, 2022 Amount in [ntangible assets under develog for a period of
Particulars Less than [ year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total
years
Project in progress = - - =
Project temporarily suspended - - - -
* Intangible assets under develoy include soft fed for tracking and £ project-wise I the Bill of O {BOQ) and the acual work completedieonsumed,
This soflware i anticipated to be completed in less than one year.
Mote: There are no projects in progress under intangible assers under develop whuse pletion is fue or has exceeded its cost compared to its original plan.

(This space fas been insentionally fefi blank)
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Investments
Non-current Current
Particulars Asat As at As at Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Investements in mutual funds (quoted, carried at fair value through profit or loss)

Mil (March 31, 2022; 1,376,000} units in DSPBR Ultra Short Term Direct-Growth - - - 22649
Nil (March 31, 2022: 1,807,561) units in IDFC Bond Short Term Direct-Growth - - - B85.71
Ml (March 31, 2022: 1,153,634) units in Kotak Bond Short Term Dircet-Growth - - - 527.20
Total Carrying Value - - = 1.639.40
Aggregate hook value of quoted investments - - = 1,639.40
Aggregate market value of quoted investments - - - 1,639.40
Trade receivables and contract assets

Current
Particulars As ut As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Unsecured. considered good 4 847.88 3,071.06
Trade receivables which have significant inerease in ercdit risk 127.73 82.85
4,975.61 3,154.51

Less: Inpairment Allowance (allowance for bad and doubtful debts)

Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit nisk (127.73) (82.83)
Tatal 4,847.88 3,071.66

Notes:

(i) Mormally the Group collects all receivables from its customers within the applicable credit period. The Group assesses impairment on trade receivables from all the
customers on facts and circumstances related to each transaction,

(i1} On account of adoption of Ind AS 109, the Group uses a simplified approach (lifetime expected credit loss model) for the purpose of computation of expected credit loss for
tradle receivables.

(i) Mo rade or other receivable arc due from dircctors or ather officers of the Group cither severally or jointly with any other person. Nor sny trade or other reccivable are due
from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a pariner, a dircctor or 2 member,

(iv) Tncludes unbilled revenue of Rs, 13701 (March 31, 2022: Rs, 30.73)

(iv) Trade receivables ageing schedule

As at March 31, 2023

| Unbilled | o ding for following periods from due date of payment —| Total

Particulars = 6 months 6 months - 1 year 1-2 years 1-3 years >3 years
Undisputed Trade receivables- considered good 137.11 3.871.23 72077 118.77 - - 484788
Undisputed Trade receivables- which have - 16.30 44,03 63.62 378 - 127.73
significant increase in credit risk
Undisputed Trade receivables- credit impaired - - = & & - x
Disputed Trade reccivables- considered good - - = & - = -
Disputed Trade receivables- which have significant - - - - - - -
inerease in credit risk
Disputed Trade receivables- credit impaired - “ - - - - -

137.11 3,887.53 764.81 182,38 3.78 = 4,975.61
As at March 31, 2022

| Unbilled | Ouststanding for following periods from due date of payment | Total
Particulars < i months 6 months - 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years =3 years
Undisputed Trade receivables- considered good 30.74 2,483.37 119.81 R Ak - - 3,071.65
Undisputed Trade receivables- which have - - 34.92 27.00 15.07 587 R1R6
significant increase in credit risk
Undisputed Trade receivables- credit impaired - - - - - - -
Disputed Trade receivibles- considered good - - - - - - -
Disputed Trade receivables- which have significant - - - i & & -
increase in eredit risk
Disputed Trade receivables- credit impaired - - - - - - -
30.74 2,883.37 154,73 64.73 15.07 587 3,154.51

Contract assets

As at Mareh 31, 2023, the Group has contract assets of Rs. STR.S5 (March 2022 Rs. 704.50). For further details refer note 22,
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Other financial assets

(Unsecured and considered good unless otherwise stated)
Particulars

Security deposit

- Considered good

- Considered doubtful

l.oan to employees

Bank deposit of more than 12 months
Interest accrued on loan to employee
Interest accrued on fixed deposit
Balances in payment gateways

Revenue equalisation reserve

Less: Allowance for credit losses
Total

Note; Deposits amount to Rs.1,034.80 (March 31, 2022 Rs. 146.00) are lien marked.

Non-current tax assets (net)

Tax deducted at source recoverable
Tutal

Other assets

(Unsecured, Considered good, unless otherwise stated)
Particulars

Capital advances

- Considered good

- Considered doubtful

Less: Allowance for doubtful advances

Prepaid expenses
Advance to employce

Advance to vendors
Balance with government authorities

Total
Inventories

valued at lewer af cost or net realisable value)
Particulars

Stock-in-trade
Total
Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars

Balance with banks

- In current accounts

- In deposit with original maturity of less than three months
Cash on hand

Total

Bank Balance other than cash and cash equivalents

Particulars

Deposits with original maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12 months

Total

* Deposits amount to Rs.Nil (March 31, 2022 Rs.5,18) are lien marked.

Non-current Current
Asat As at Asat As at
March 31, 2023 March 31,2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
7.512.20 3,76642 766.09 1,496,89
126.11 56,19 - =
20.00 50,00 50.00 -
870,10 8.95 1.034.80 340,90
0.68 315 5.09 -
641 b 52,89 14.23
- - 8.85 2.80
566.66 85.17 - -
9,102.16 5,969.88 1,917.72 1,854,82
(126.11) (36.19) - o
8,976.05 5,913.69 1,917.72 1,854.82
As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
2.612.15 1,285.71
2,612.15 1,285.71
Non-current Current
As at As at Asat Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
1,325.93 1,182.76 - -
75.00 - - -
{75.00) = & .
1,325.93 1,182.76 - -
918.69 487.32 903,42 713.59
- - 102.07 87.03
- - 1,222.97 602,05
- - 2,440.53 2,922.14
2,244.62 1,670.08 4,668.99 4,324.81
Asat As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
39.46 53.57
39.46 53.57
As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
258.18 53036
301.80
- 0.36
559.98 530,72
As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
1,250.03 32.64
1,250.03 32.64
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15 Share capital

Authorised share capital

3782243 Fauy Shares (March 31, 2022: 37 822,434) of Rs, 1 leach
39,521,715 Preference Shares {March 31, 2022: 14,155, 475) of Rs. 100 cach
2,792,520 Preference Shares (March 31, 20220 Nil) of Rs. 10 each

Issucd shure capital, subseribed and fully paid

30,134,012 Equiny Shares (March 31, 20220 30,134, 112} of Rs, 10 each Tully padup

Tssued preference share capital, subscribed and Tolly paid

TAT1.527 Bapoty companent of 00001 %6 Series B Compulsonly O thle Curnalative Pref Shares (March 31, 2022; 7477.527) of Rs, 100 cach*
A58, 366 Equity conpencat of 00001 % Series C Compulsarily C ihle Cumulative P Shares (March 31, 2002: 4 455 366 of Rs. 100 cacl®
1.550.01 8 Laguily component of (0001 % Series C1 Compulzorily C ihle Cummifative Prefe Shares (March 31, 2022: 1,5336,618) of Rs. 100 cach*
SE.T3S Equity component of 0.0001% Series 3 Compulserily Convertible € ive P Shares (March 31, 2022: 584.735) of Rs. 104 cach®
36,878 Lquity component of 0.0M011% Scrics D1 Compulserily Co ihle Cumulative P Shires (March 31, 2022: 36, 878) of Rs. 100 cach®
36,878 Lquity component of 0.0001% Series 132 Comy ity Ci ible Curmulative P Shares (March 31, 2022: 36 87%) of Rs. 100 each®
4,505,397 Equity compaenent of 0.0001 % Series E Compulserily Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares (March 31, 20222 Nil) of Rs, 100 each*
1,038,700 Equity companent of (L0001 % Scrics E1 Compulsorily C, ible Cunmilative Pref: Shares (March 31, 2022: Nil) of Rs. 100 cch®

2,772,579 Equity conmpanetit of 0.0001 % Series F Opti C ihle R bl Prefe Slares (March 31, 2022: Nil) of Rs. 10 cuch®

*Net of trunsuction cost of Rs 45923 (March 31, 2022; Rs 194.24),

Notes:
{a) R il of shares ding ut the b

and at the end of reporting period

Equity share af Rs. 10 each issucd, subscribed and fully paid

As at April 01, 2021
Changes during the year
As ut March 31, 2022
Changes during the year
As at March 31, 2023
11} Equity compunent of 1,000 % Series B h ibl

preference shares of Rs. 100 cach

As at April 1, 2021
Tssued during the year
As at March 31, 2022
Iszucd during the year
As ot March 31, 2023

1IT) Equity compunent of 100014 Series C compulsorily convertible cumulative p shares of Rs, 100 each

As at April 1, 2021
Tssucd during the year
As ot March 31, 2022
Issued during the year
As at March 31, 2023

IV) Equity compunent of (L0D01% Series C1 pulserily

preference shares of Ry, 100 each

As at April 1, 2021

Issued during the year
As at March 31, 2022
Iszued during the year
As at March 31, 2023

V) Equity component of 0.0001% Series I shiures of Rs, 100 exch

convertible lative prefe

As at April 1, 2021

Issued during the year
As at March 31, 2022
Issued during the year
As at March 31, 2023

V1) Equity component of 00001 % Series DT compulsorily convertilile eumulative preference shares of Rs. 100 each

As at April 1, 2021

Tssued during the year
As at March 31, 2022
Tasued during the yeur
As at March 31, 2023

Vi) Equity conmponent of L0001% Series D2 pulsorily convertihle lative preference shares of Rs, 100 each

As at April 1, 2021
Essued dunng the yeur
As at March 31,2022
Issued during the yeur
As al Murch 31, 2023

Asal
March 31, 2023

Asal
March 31, 2022

378224
R2172
27925 -
43.883.21 17.537.72
Equity shares
Asat Asat

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

10341 301341
301341 EATER
LeE-Lal
Preference Shares
Asat As ar

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

737503 737503
4,394.13 439413
1.505.50 1.515.50
SR1.63 581.63
36.24 36.24
36,24 36.24
4,324,435 -
1,032.56 -
200.35 -
19.496.13 13.938.77
Number Amount
3,00,34,112 301341
3,013,112 301341
3,01.34.112 301341
e e
Number Amount
7477527 737503
T4.77,527 737503
e
1.86.35.399 18.263.21
it
Number Amount
44,55 300 439403
44.55.366 439413
44.55.366 4.394.13
Numher Amopunt
1530618 151550
1536618 151550
1536618 151550
Number Amount
5,89.735 581.63
589,735 581.63
5,89,735 581.63
Numher Amount
36878 36.24
348TR 36.24
36.RTR 36.24
=
Nunilier Amount
3687 36.24
36.87H 3624
J6RTH J6.24
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Vi

IX)

X)

(b

(c)

Equity component of 0,0001% Series E compulsarily convertible cumulative preference shares of Rs, 100 each

As at April 1, 2021

Izsued during the vear
As at March 31, 2022
Issued during the vear
As at March 31, 2023

Equity eomponent of 0.0001% Series E1 compulsorily convertible camulative preference shares of Rs. 100 each

As al April 1, 2021

Issucd during the vear
As ot March 31, 2022
Issued during the vear
As at March 31, 2023

Equity component of 0.0001% Series F optionally convertible redeemable preference shares of Rs. 10 each
As at April T, 2021

Bssued during the vear

As at March 31, 2022

Issued during the vear

As at March 31, 2023

Rights, Preferences and Restrictions attached to shares;

Equity shares

Number Amount
4.305.397 432445
4,505.397 432445

Number Amotint
1039706 1.U32 36
I.ll39!1l]6 1,032.56

Number Amgunt
2772579 200 35
2,772,579 200.35

The Cormpany has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share, Each holder of equity shares is cnlllbcd to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of the Company. holders of equity

shares will be entitled to recerve remaining assets of the Company after settl of all the preferential liabilitics. The will be in prop
0.0001% Isorily ¢ Iati e share (Series B to Series E1)
The Company had issued Series B. C. C1. D. DI, DZ E and EI of 0.0001% fully and compulsorily ¢ il lati

Each holder of Serics B. C. C1. D, DI, D2, Eand EI CCCPS 15 entitled to one vote per share held assuming conversion of CCCPS in the manner set out in the Sharchold

0.0001 %
The Compum has only one class of op

Iy convertible red ble pref sh:lre{Series F)

i il ki i

are eligible 1o reccive cumulative dmdn:nd at the rate of 0.0001% on the face value of the share, Each holder of OCRPS has the right of red
into CCCPS which. further, may be converted into equity sharcs in the ratio of 1:1 at anvtime at the option of the holder.

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% of the shares in the Group

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each:

Amit Ramani

DOIT Usban Ventures {India) Private Limited (formerly known as DOIT Enterprises India Private Limited)
SCI Investments V

RAB Enterprises (India) Prvate Limsted

0.0001 "% Series B compulsorily canvertible cumulative preference shares of Rs 100 each:
SCI Investments V

0.0001 %% Series C compulsorily convertible cumulative preference shares of Rs 100 each:
SCI Investments V
DOIT Urkan Ventures (India) Privage Limited (formerdy known as DOIT Enterprises India Private Limited)

0.0001 % Series C1 compulsorily convertible cumulative preference shares of Rs 100 each:

SCI Investments V

RAB Enterprises {Indsa) Private Limited

DOIT Urban Ventures {India) Private Limited (formerly known as DOIT Enterprises India Private Linited)

0.0001"%% Series D compulsorily convertible cumulative preference shares of Rs 100 each:
Bisaue Limited
Link Investment Trust

1o the number of equity shares held by the sharcholders.

shares (CCCPS) having a par value of Rs. 100 per share fully paid up,

and Article of Associ af
the Comypany and are cligible to recenve cumulative dividend at the rate of 0.0001% on the face value of the share. CCCPS shall be converted to equity: shares in the ratio of one equity share for cach CCCPS held at
anvtime a the option of the holder or before the expiny of 20 vears from the date of issuance of the CCCPS or filing of the prospectus by the Company in connection with an Initial Public Offer. whichever is earlier.

along with

share (OCRPS) having a par value of Rs, 10 per share fully paid up. Each holder of OCRPS 15 entitled to one vote per share held and
by cash or it can be convertible

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

Number % of holding Number % of holding
11.799 883 39.16% 11,799 845 39.16%
$.354.424 17.77% 3354424 17.77%

2438324 B.09% 2438324 8.08%
9.737.468 32.31% 9,737,468 32.31%
IQQG,IO_] 97.33% 29!330§]lll 9‘?‘33'2

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

Number %o of holdi Number % of holding
7477527 L00.00% 7.477.527 10LO0%
7‘47'@1’ 100.00% 7,477,527 100.00%

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

Number ¥ of holding Mumber % of holding
2987112 6T 05% 2987.112 AT.05%
1.468.254 32.95% L468.254 32.95%
4,455,366 100.00% 4,455,366 100.00%

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

Number % of holding Number % of holding
768309 SO0 T68, 3049 0005
451.766 249 40 451,766 29.40%
316543 20.60% 316,543 20,608

1‘53%8 10L00%, 1.536,618 100.00%

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

Number o of holdin Number %o of holdin,
514,507 BT.20% 514,597 ¥7.26%
75.13% 12.74% 73,138 12.74%
589,735 100,00 589,735 100,00 %
s i AN
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(d

As at March 31, 2023

As ot March 31, 2032

Numbier %a uf holiling Nupher % of holding
A0 % Series DI P rily i bative preference shuares of Bs 100 cach:
Link Investment Trust 36878 | D0, 36,878 UL TR
SETN 000 36878 LD
As af March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2021
Numbier %o af halding Numher % of holding
B0001 % Serles D2 pulsorily convertible preference shares of Rs 100 cach:
Link Investment Trust in 8T8 100,003 36,878 10000 %
I6.8TH T00.00%: 36,878 TOD.00%
As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Number % af holding Nusniber % of halding
DA00T% Series E pulserily convertible preference shares of Rs 100 each:
Ashish Kacholia 14065691 T77.19% - -
Bisgue Limited 1024110 2281% - -

44.89.801 100.00%

As at Muarch 31, 2023

As ar March 31, 2022

Number % _of holding

Nunher % of holding

0.0001%, Series EI i preference shares of Rs 100 each:
Risque Limited 1024110 Y8.50%

10.24,110 YH.50%
it

As at March 31, 2023

As ar March 31, 2022

Number % of holding

Number %a of holding

0.0001 % Scries F optionally cenvertible redeemable preference share of Rs 10 cach:

VBAP Holdings Privite Limited 1L,73.510 42.33%
QRG Investmenss and Holdings Linted 10,31,657 30.21%
Kurmav Real Estate Holdings LLI® 1,354,749 5.58%
Fmerge Capital Oppontumity Scheme/Fund Manager 193,430 6.95%
Mr. Arjun Shamker Blartia 167,644 1. (15%

17,20.996 98, 14%

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

Number %o of holding Numbur %o of hulding
00001 % Compulsorily convertible cunmlative preference shares of Rs 100 each:
SC1 Investments V 1.12.32.948 60.27% 1,12,32,94% 150.22%
DOLT Urban Ventires (India) Privare Limited {formerly known as DOIT Enterprises India Private Limited) 17.84.797 9.38% 17,384,797 23487
Bisque Limited 1024010 5.49% - -
Ashish Kachahia 34,065,641 18.59% - %
1.75.07.546 93.93% 1,30,17,745 174.00%

As at March 31, 2023

As ut March 31, 2022

Number %o _of holding

Numher %o of bulding

0.0001 % lsory convertible lati preferenee share

Bisgue Limited 124,016 985005

10,24,110 UK,50%

As at March 31, 2023

As at Mareh 31, 2022

Nomber % nf halding

Numher % of holding

D001 optionally cunvertible redeemable preference share

QRG Investmends and Holdings Limited 10,31,657 370%
VBAP Holdings Private Limited L7510 42.33%
Karmav Resl Estate Holdmgs LLP 154,749 5.38%
Emerge Capital Opportunity SchemeFand Manager 193,436 6.98%
Mr. Arjun Shanker Bharti . 1,67,644 6.05%

27.20.996 98.14%

Shares reserved for issve under options
For detail of shares reserved for issue under Employee Share Based paymenis (ESOPs) of the Group [refer Mote-37].
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{e)  Details of shures held by promaters

As at March 31, 2023

No. of shares

Nu. of shares

Promuter Name a." the €hanee durin: at the end of % of total shures eliane doring the
beginning of the year year
the year
the vear
Amit Ramani 11799585 - 1,17.99.885 EERIE .00
Total 1,17.99.885 i 1,17.99.885 5
As at March 31, 2022
Pinpgtakioe Mo of sharey
9 u 0 i
Promoter Numw 2." he Chiunke durlng uf the emd of %5 of total shares o phoange duing thi:
beginning of ihe year ¥ear
the yoar
the year
At Raman 7.99. 885 - 117,99 885 ECR TG 0.00%
Total 1,17.99.885 - 1.17.49,885 39.16% -
i

M shures have been issued pursuant to contraen withoput payment being recetved m eash, allowted as fully poid up shares by way of benus issues nor bus any sharcs been bought buck since the incorporition of the

Group.

Other equity

Particulars

Securitivs premium reserve

Balunce us at the begirmmg of the yair
Add: On issuc of shares during the year
Balunce at the end of the year

Shure based payment reserve

Bulance as at the beginning of the year

Addd: Options expense recopnised during the year
Less: Options exercised during the year

Balance as uf the cod of the year

Equity component of (L001% pulsory convertible {Series D, D1 and D2)
Balance a5 at the beginning of the year

Issued during the year

Balance at the end of the year

Equity componcnt of 0.0001% pulsary convertible preference share (@
Halance as at the beginning of the year

Tssued during the vear

Balance at the end of the year

(il Series wise dedails (From Series B 1o Seres 1) has been diszlosed in Note 15(a),

Fquity compunent of unsecured loun
Balance as ai ihe beginning of the year
Issued during the year (Refer nute 17)

Balance af the end of the year

Equity component of LI % optionally convertible redeemable preference share (Series F)
Balance a5 at the beginning of the year

Fssued during the year

Balanee at the end of the year

Retulned earnings

Balance as ut the beginning of the year
Adk: Loss for the year

Add: Other comprehensive loss for the year

Bulanee as at the end of the year

Nate: Pursuant to the Series F OCRPS Subscription Letter Apreement dated Mareh 29, 2023, the Series F OCRPS Investors waived their “rights of
ility upon initial recognition, bus been bifurcated briween cquity component and liability and the cquity componiend is classi
clagsi fed under 'viber financial labilities', These OCRPS on the date of modilieation is sccounted al fair value and there was me gain'loss on derccognition of 1

rights, the OCRPS, clussificd us I

Mature and Purpase of Other Reserves @

Retained Earnings

Total

ond

As at March 31, As at March 31,
2023 2022
11.341.47 11.341.47
6,177.54 -
17.519.01 1134147
510.79 399.13
396.07 11166
Y686 510,79
14,835.09 14,R35.09
14,835.00 14.835.09
13,938.77 13.938.77
35701 3
19,295.74 13.938.77
2194 =
- 2194
21.94 1.4
2,35 -
200.35 -
(34,189.34) (2R 452.61)
(4,663.67) 15.715.58)
13.02) {20.15)
{38.856.04) (34,188.34)
13,923.00 . 458,72
premim by cash™. Upon waiver of

ed under “oiber cquny”’ and the liability component is

Retained earnings are the profits that the Group has earsed 6l date, less any iransfers o general reserve, dividends or other distributions paid to shareholders. Retained sarmings is a fiee reserve available o the

Group,
Securities preminm reserve

Securtties promium s used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve can be ushised only for limited purposes such os ssuunce of bonus shares in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act,

2013,




Awtis Space Solutions Private Limited

Naotes to ennsolidated fnancial statenpents fur the year eaded Marel 31,2023
CIN No. UT4999D12014PTC274230

AL maunts in B likhs, onbess otherwise stated)

Share based payment reserve
Tl Giroap Bas “Awtis Space Solutsons Stoek Option Plan (EDSOP 20857 share opuion sehicmes under which opiions to subsenbe for the CGiroup's shares have been granted to eligible enmpluyees, The anployed’s
stock aptions (eserve is used w recognise the value of equity-settled share-based paymenis provided w employees, meliudmg key mansgement personnel, us part of theie rermmeratnnn. Refer o Note 37 for further

detils of these plans.

Comy ily convertible dek s (Serics I, D1 and D)

00 1% Compulsorily convertible debentures (CCD) las been issued 1o Bisgue Lovited m face valoe of Bs 1000 per CCTY Each CCD shall bear a coupon rate of 0.001%, Each CCD shall be converted e equity
shares ul wny time al the optive of the hoelder. Each CCTY shall automatically convert intu cquity shares, at the conversion prive in ellvct, upon the carlivr of' one day before expiry of 10 years from the date of issuance
ol #uch CUTY or o case of oceurence ol initial public offer (TTO),

Unsecured loan
The Group has aken unsecured loan earrying mierest rate of 12% The unseewred loan i3 repayible as bullet payment on matieny, As per the lan agreement, lender his a right o subsenbe 1o eqeay shares or

pubsneily canvertible pect shares of the Group for an amaunt cqual to the outstanding amoont of Toan ad acored interest thercon. Refer nete 17 for details.
C lsoril ibl lative preference shares and Iy convertible r ble preference shares
Far conpulsonily o ible enimulative prefe alares (Serics Bio Series By and epuionally ceavertible redecmable preforence shares (Series F), refer note 15 (B)

{(Thhee space hae been loft hank istentiomally)
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Awfis Space Solutions Private Limited

Niduted £ 1

Notes to for the year ended Mareh 31, 2023
CIN No. UT4999D1.2014PTC274230

(AR amounts in Ks. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

17 Borrowing

Nun-current

Current

Asal
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

& 2945
298.55 =
19R.55 29.45
390,43 A00.00
040 040
396,83 400.40
Y9538 419.85
i

Asat Asat
Edricte March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Svcured
Current maturity on long term borrowings [Refer note (a) below] - =
Bank overdratt - =
Tutal {a) & =
Unseeured
Term lvan from other parties [Reler note (b) and () below] 19686 TROTT
Current maturity en boog term borrowings [Refer nute (B9 & {¢) below] - -
Lean from direetor# - -
Totul (h) 396.86 TRO.TT
Total {a+l) U686 TRI.77
el
* For micrest rate and hquidity risk related disclosures, refer note 36,
# Interest free loan from director is repayable on demand
Term Jpan from other partics:
a) Rs. 700 carrics an interest rate of 14,60% and is repayable in 31 equal monthly mstal ing from Sey

1, 2019 and the kst instalment due was on March 1,

2022, Due to moratorium period the same was extended upto April 30, 2022, This loan is secured by an exclusive and first charge by way of a len over the fixed depusits. The

amount outstanding as at March 31, 2023 is Nil (March 31, 2022 is Rs. 29.45).

Iv) Rs. 300 carrics an interest rate of 12% and is repayable as buliet payment on maturity. The amount outstanding as at March 31, 2023 s Rs.300.00 {March 31, 2022 is R,

o i

300.00), As per the loan agreemwnt, lender has a right 10 subscribe 1o cquity shares or comp il
wutstanding amount of loan and aceroed interest thereon.

shitres of the Group for an amount equal to the

€) Rs. 1,000 carries an interest rate of 12% and is repayable in 30 cqual monthly instalments commeneing from January 01, 2022 with the last instalment due on June 1, 2024, The

amount oulstanding as at March 31, 2023 is Rs. 493,31 (March 31, 2022 15 Rs, 8B80.77).

18(a) Net employee deflined benefit iabilities

Particulars Non-current
Asat Asat
March 31, 2023 Narch 31, 2022
Provision for gratuity (Refer Note 35) 161.53 155.70
Total ]Eﬁl.S] 155.70
18(b) Provisions Non-current
As at Asat
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Provision for compensated absences - -
Total = -
19 Other Mnancial liahilities
Nom-current
Asat As at
March 31, 2023 Murch 31, 2022
Fair value of security deposils received from customers 7552060 370244
Creditors for capital poods*s = %
Retention moncy - &
Trterest acerued bt not duc on unseeured term loan from other partics 46.53 1080
Employee related lisbility % =
Interest fiabilily on compound nancial inst st . !
Total T.570.19 3,713

Current
Asat Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Tik4 41.81
7384 41.81
=
Current
Asat As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
28630 20642
286,36 296.42
Current
Asat Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
3,516.29 TETL2G
2,450.00 1.145.97
57739 198,65
4.50 810
o6l 84 578.66
113,49 015
7,623.51 4,802.79
A

* Creditors for capital goods are nomlly non- interest bearing and are normally seitfed within 90 days (rom the due date,
# Creditors for capital goods includes amount payable to MSME vendors amounts to Nil (March 31, 2022 Rs. 308.17)

## Includes interest liability on Optionally Convertible Redeermble Preference Shares (OCRPS) amounting to Rs 113,32 (March 31, 2023; Rs 113.32) fiom the date of issue of
Serics F OCRPS 1ill the date of issuanee of Scries F OCRPS Subscription letler dated March 29, 2023, wherein the investors waived their nights of redemprion. This amount has

been subsequently paid on August 16, 2023,




Awfis Space Solutions Private Limited
Mutes o v fidated fi ial for the year ended Mareh 31, 2023
CIN No. UT4990DL2014PTC2742346

(Al 0 Bs lakhe, unless ofherwise staed)
i} Trade payables
As al As atl
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
= Ouistanding dues of nuere enterprises std small enterprises 21.39 42,24
- Uutstanding dues of ereditors other than mivro enterprses and small enterprises® 5,061.36 4,469,37
5,082.75 4,511.61
S
*inchudes wade payables 1o related partics amounts o Rs. 500.37 (March 31, 2022 Rs 501.39),
() Trade Payable ageing scheduole
As at March 31, 2023 0 ding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than | year 12 years 2-3 years More than 3 veurs Tatal
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises w - = - 2
Total patstanding ducs of creditars other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 4.950.03 - - 11133 5006136
Disputed dues of micra enterprises and small enterprises - - - be. e 1 21.39
Disputed dues of creditors other than pucro enterprises and small enterprises - = - - =
4,951.03 = - 132.72 5,082.75
As ut March 31, 2022 € ling for foll g perivds from duoe date of payment
Less than 1 year 1-2 yeurs 2-3 years Mouore than 3 years Tutal
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 20,69 c - 20,69
Total outstanding ducs of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 420061 - 26R.76 4,469.37
Disputed dues of micre enterprises and small enterprises - - 11.55 1155
Disputed dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises - - =
4,221.30 - 290.31 4.511.61
(b} As per Schedule 11 of the Companies Act, 2013 and as certified by the management, the amount due to Micro and Small Enterprises a2 defined in Micro, Small and Medium Entermprises
Development Act, 2006 is as under:
As at As at
el
FURIEIT March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(1) Principal amount and interest due therson remaining unpaid t any supplier covered under MSMED Act, 2006
~Principal amount due ta micro and small enterprises (including capital ereditors) 21.39 4224
-Interest due on above - -
{i1) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MEMED Act 2006 along with the amounts
of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year ) £
(1) The amoust of interest due and payable for the period of deliy in making pavment (which have been paid hut
beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act 2006, = =
{1¥) The amount of interest secrued and romaining unpaid st the end of cach accounting yeur = .
{v) The amwunt of further interest remuining duc and payable even in the suceceding years, until such date when the
inlerest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterpeise for the purpose of disallowance a5 a deductible "
expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act 2006
Dues o Micra and Small Enterprises have been determined 1o the extent such partics huve been identified on the basis of information eollected by the Munagenwent. This hes been relied upon by the
auditors,
{e) Trade payable are normally non- interest bearing and are normally seithed within 45 days from due dare.
N As at Asal
B (S R NI March 31,2023 Mareh 31,2022
Advanees for construetion and fit-out projects 426.08 362.91
Advanees for space rental 41887 287.12
Deferred revenue S88.07 253.96
1,433.62 903.9%
21(hy  Other liabilities
Non-current Current
As at As at As at Asat
March 31, 20123 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Advance rent 224182 1,321.81 1,134.77 G2R.R5
Statacory dues - - 519,03 314,95
Total 1.241.82 132181 165380 943,80

Note: Advance rent relates to difference of prisent valie of Jease related security deposits received from customers and sctual received and is relensed 1o the statement of profit and loss on straight-line
basis over the tenure of lease,
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Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
CIN No. UT4999DL2014PTC274236

(All amounts in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

22

Revenue from contract with customers

Year ended

Year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Rental income 38,236.76 18,438.09
Income from construction and fit-out projects 10,501.80 4.873.02
Income from facility management services 2,094.17 963.14
Sale of traded goods:
Fumiture and work from home solutions 47.27 234.56
Food items 1,114.33 244.14
Other services 2,533.81 950.9%
Total 54,528.14 25,704.53

(a) Performance Obligation

During the year, the Group has not entered into long term contracts with customers and accordingly disclsoure of unsatisfied or remaining performance
obligation {which is affected by several factors like changes in scope of contracts, periodic revalidations, adjustment for revenuc that has not been

materialized, tax laws cte.) is not applicable to the Group,

(b) Disaggregation of Revenue

In the following tables, revenug is disaggregated by product Group and by geography. This is consistent with the revenue information that is disclosed for
each reportable segment under Ind AS 108 (refer Note 31), The Group believes that this disaggregation best depicts how the nature, amount, timing and
uncertainty of our revenues and cash flows are affected by industry, market and other economic factors.

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Within India 16,291.38 7.265.84
Outside India - -
Total Revenue 1 6;29 1.38 75265.84

() Timing of Revenue Recognition
Revenue from sale of traded goods and services are transferred to the customers at a point in time, whereas revenue from construction and fit-out projects,
facility management services, rental income and other services is transferred over a period of time.

(d) Reconciliation of revenue recognised with contract price

There is no difference between amount of revenue recognized with contract price,

(¢) Trade receivables and Contraet Balances

Particilars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2023 2022

Trade receivables 4.162.57 2.679.88

Contract assets 578.55 704.50

Contract liabilities 1,433.62 903.99

Contraet assets relates to revenue earned from construction and fit-out projects. As such, the balances of this account vary and depend on the number of
on-going projects at the end of the year.

Contract liabilitics includes advances reecived for construction and fit-out projects and space rentals, It further includes advances bllllng Imtards space
rental and construction and fit-out projects for which the Group has to provide the services. i -

{This space has been left blank intentionallv) g / .
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Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31,

CIN No. UT4999DL2014PTC274236
(All amounts in Rs, lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

2023

({f) Significant changes in contract labilities

As al March 31,

As at March 31,

Particulars 2023 2022
Changes in balance of contract liabilities during the year:

Opening balance of contract liabilities 903.99 195.16
Amount of revenue recognised against opening contract liabilities (903.99) (195.16)
Addition in balance of contract liabilities for current year 1,433.62 903.99
Closing balance of contract liabilities 1,433.62 903.99

{g) Trade Receivables and Contract Balances

For Trade Receivables, refer Note No. 8,

Further, the Group has no contracts where the period between the transfer of the promised goods or services to the customer and payment terms by the
customer exeeeds one year. In light of above, it does not adjust any of the transaction prices for the time value of money.

{h) There is no variable consideration included in the transaction price.

23 Other income

Interest income
- On fixed deposits
- On income tax refund
= On unwinding of fair valuation of security deposits
- On loan to employee
Gain on redemption of investments
Liabilitics no longer required written back
Gain on pre settlement of financial asset or liability (net)
Rental income on fair value of security deposit
COVID-19 related rent concessions
Profit on termination of lease
Profit on modification of lcase
Miscellaneous income

24 Purchases of traded goods

Food items
Furniture for sale

25 Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade

Balance at the beginning of the year
Traded goods and components

Less: Balance at the end of the year
Traded goods and components

Year ended
March 31, 2023

Year ended
March 31, 2022

122,78 61,16
53.97 -
414.05 482.34
2.62 8.06
- 85.52
17.07 37.56
- 72.89
754.69 434,56
- 957.19
503.96 21.70
138.81 -
4243 -
Total 2,050.38 2,166.98
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
1,244.83 246.45
8.63 187.73
Total 1253.46 434.18
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
5357 20.47
19.46 53.57
Total 14,11 (33.10)
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Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
CIN No. UT4999DL2014PTC274236

{All amounts in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

26 Employcee benefit expenses

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31,2022
Salaries, wages & bonus 8.403.54 4,920.14
Contribution to provident and other funds 472.41 219.74
Gratuity expenses [Refer note 35) 58011 51.97
Share based payments [Refer note 37) 396.07 111.66
Staft welfare expenses 241.54 111,89
Total 9,579.67 5415.40
27 Finance costs
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31,2022
Interest on term loan 136.39 83,10
Interest on lease liabilities 6,325.29 4.277.71
Interest on security deposit 652.85 483.67
Other finance charges 44.01 27.24
Interest on compound financial instruments 11349 0.15
Total 7,272.03 4,871.87
18 Depreciation and amortisation expense
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment [Refer Note 5(a)] 3,559.11 2,673.98
Depreciation of right-of-use assets [Refer Note 5(c)] 11,409.46 7.152.09
Amortisation of intangible assets [Refer Note 6] 29.30 17.22
Total 14,997.87 9,843.29
29 Other expenses
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Common arca maintenance 2423.32 1,444.72
Electricity expenses 3,906.51 1,728.93
Rent 5,070.35 2,008.76
Water charges 165.19 74.88
Security and housckeeping charges 734.47 316.27
Parking expenses 324.50 106.00
Communicalion cxpenses 827.73 566.39
Legal and professional expenses 774.53 486.27
Payment to auditors (refer note (i) below) 62.50 25.25
Brokerage expenses 1,295.12 468.21
Busincss promotion cxpenscs 476.69 208.33
Advertisement and sales promotion 262.82 246.01
Repair and maintenance 580.47 274.29
Travelling and conveyance expenses 614.95 3250
Equipment hiring charges 84.15 100.30
Rates and taxes 361.38 131.37
Insurance 50.04 53.10
Recruitment and training expenses 43,92 13.02
Printing and stationery expenses 127.96 59.55
Loss on pre settlement of financial asset or liab (net) 127.09 -
Charity and donation - 8.38
Provision for doubtful security deposits 69,92 22.50
Assets written off 135.30 40.43
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 165.13 -
Provision for doubtful debts 44.88 31.21
Provision for doubtful advances 75.00 "
Loss on redemption of investments 277 -
Miscellaneous expenses 264.18 129.33

Total 19,077.87 8,868.51
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Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
CIN No. U74999DL2014PTC274236

(All amounts in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes:
(i) Payment to auditors (excluding taxes):
As Auditor
For statutory audit 50.00 25.16
For tax audit - -
For certification 7.50 -
For other services 4.00 -
In other capacity
Reimbursement of expenses 1.00 0.09
Total 62.50 25,25

(ii) Corporate Social Responsibility:-
The Group has not carned profit in three immediate preceding financial years, therefore, there was no amount as per Section 135 of the Act which was
required to be spent on CSR activities in the current financial year by the Group,

30 Earnings per share

Basic Earning Per Share amounts is calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of Equity
shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed using the weighted average number of equity and dilutive equity shares
outstanding during the year, except where the result would be anti-dilutive.

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Loss attributable to equity holders (a) (4,663.67) (5.715.58)
Weighted average number of cquity shares outstanding during the year (Nos) {b) 30134112 3.01.34,112
Basic and diluted camings per share (Rs.) [d = a/b] (15.48) (18.97)
Face value per share (Rs.) 10.00 10.00

* In view of losses during current and previous year, the options which are anti-dilutive have been ignored in the caleulation of diluted loss per share,
accordingly there is no variation berween basic and diluted loss per share.

(This space has been left blank intentionatly)
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i

Sepment information

Treseription of sepmients and principal activites

The Lironp consnders biksiness sepment as the hasis for prmany segmentil reporime. The Group is onsanied into ses el bsimss scuments
w3 Providing comworkimg space vn eent amd allied sunvices

b} Faciliny manapement servces
cpConstruction and fitou servives
di Ouher services

Conts and wipenses which cannot be allocated 1o any husiness segment are reflected m the colunm “Unallosated”. Segments are consistent with the imtemal repoming provided o de Chief Operating Decison Maker (CODM). The CODM
i comsidered o be the Bourd of Ditectors who makes sictegic decistons and is responaible for allocating resources and assessing perfonnance of the operating segments, in accordance with reposting reguirements of Ind AS = 10§ on
Segment Beponting. Facility managensent services and ofher services have been clubbad topether as 'Others as their revenue, segiment resull and segmient assets arg less than 10% of wial revenue, 1otal result and total assets of the Group,

Enfurmation shaut rep 2 wmid fliations to amounts reflected in the Consulidated flancial siplements
Co-working spuce on renf and Cunstriction and fit-onl profects Others Unallucated Total
Particulars allied services 18K
March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022 | March 31,2023 | March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022 | Narch 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022 | Murch 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022
Imcome
Extermal sales | 4188490 | 19,633 81 | 10500 50 | 437302 | 114144 | 119770 | = | - S4SIR14 | 25,704 53
Tatal Income {A) | 41,884.90 | 19,633.81 | 150080 | 4373.02 | 14144 | 1,197.70 | - | - =4.828.14 | 15,704.53
Eapenses
| Employee benefits expemes TA5RAT 413643 1.R44.99 | 02664 376.21 25133 - - 9.579.67 SAL540
{ Inveniory costs 126757 4008 - - - - - - | 26757 40108
| Expenses 15,583.40 722519 9.404.17 4.446.99 212494 1.154.90 93737 224.37 24,115.28 13.055.45
Depreciation and amortisation -
expunses 14.997 57 984329 5 . . . : . 1499767 9,843.29
Total expenses (B} 19.207.72 21,605.99 11,314.16 5473.63 1,500.15 1.407.23 937.37 24.37 53.960.39 I8,715.22
Profit/ (Loss) (A-B) | L4778 | (197248 ] 81236 | (000.61}] 350,713 1209.53) | 93737 (228.37) 567.75 | (3,010.69)
Triercst expense 2 = = - 727203 487187 727203 487187
Iterest income . = - - = SR3.65 551,50 SR3.65 SA1.50
Ciiher unallocable incone - - - 7 - 1,456,060 161542 1 45696 Lal542
Net toss (4,663.67) 15,715.58)|
OTHER DISCLOSURES
Co-working space on rent and Construction and ft-ont prajects Others Unalloeated
Particulars allicd services (R
March 31,2023 | Marcch 31, 2022 | March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022 | March 31,2023 | March 31, 2022 | March 31,2023 | Mareh 31,2022 | March 31,2023 | March 31, 2022
Capital expenditare:
Propesty, plan and equipment 1637966 5,100.69 - - - - - - 16,379,566 50069
Right-ofuse Assets 31.101.07 37853 - - - = - = JLIOLOT K7RIS3
Tniangible asser T0.59 46,78 - - - = = E T0.59 46.78
Imjangible assets under in - - - = = S
dipvelopment 3131 i
Depreciation and amorisation - - & = = g
14,
expenses i i 14.997.47 9.443.20
i . = = = p =
SIBEE ARSI RS Mo 3137 15208 53137 15209
Co-working space on rent and Construction and fit-out projeets Mhers Unallocated Total
Partieulars bl
March 31,2023 | March 31, 2022 | March 31,2023 | March 31, 2022 | March 31,2023 [ Murch 31,2022 | March 31, 2023 | March 31,2022 | March 31,2023 | March 31,2022
Sepment assets $2,043.58 46.336.17 1,826.56 270043 363.43 157.44 542689 6,774.60 93,060.46 5596573
Tatal assets $2,043.58 46,336.17 1,826.56 2,700.43 36343 157.44 BH26.49 6,774.69 43,0600.46 55,968.73
Segment | | 093501 | 4212047 | 250720 | 223714 | 38,52 | 309,04 | 201563 | 1.830.24 | 76,1240 | 46,496.59
“Total liahilities | 70,935.61 | 5212007 | 2.807.29 | 2237.14 | 365.52 | 309.04 | 215,63 | 1,830.24 | 7612405 | 46,496.59

(This space hus heon left blank imonsionaily)
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Reconcibaiion o ampunis rellected in the Hnancial siaements:

a, Heconciliation of profit

Particulars Fur the year Far ihe year
eniderl ended
Mareh 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Sepment Profitf (Loss) 0775 (3I0A9)
Irierest meome on fmanciul assels measaeed o omortised cost:
= U fived deposits 12274 flt
- £ inconme ta refamd 5397 -
=0 faer valuation of seeurity deposits 414,08 482,34
- On loan to gployee 162 [
Guin on gale of mutoal fands #5582
Fimance costs:
Tister=st on tem Joan {136.349) [EERTH)
Tnterest on lease habwlities 1h325.79) (4.277.71
Interunt on security deposit 1B52.85) {45367}
CHher linance charges 14 01) 2734
Intcrest an Uptienally Cosvertible Redeemable Preference shane {11349 (BE5)
Loag o sale of mutual funds {977 -
Provision written back - -
Liubilities o longer required wnen back 1706 3756
Fair value gain on financial instroments measured a0 FVTPL (ret) - TLEG
Rental incine an fiir value of seeunity depusic TE409 43456
COVITRS PN COMCERSIONG - 95719
Profif on terminglion of lease 503,96 770
Frofi on modification of lease 138.81 -
Miscellanous Income 42.44 -
Loss hefore tax (4,663.67) {5, TI558)
b. Reconcilintion of ussets
Particulars As at Mareh 31, Asar March 31,
21123 22
Segment assets #4.233.57 49,194.04
Investments i mutual funds - 163940
Bank depesit of moee than 12 months 150450 349 85
Interest acerued on bank deposits 59.30 14312
Cash and vash equivalenis 55094 53072
Hank Halance sther than cash and cash equivalens 1.250.03 3164
Balunce with government auhorities 244053 292214
Tax deducted o1 sousce recoverable 201215 1,285.72
Total assets 43,6046 55,968.73
I Reconciliation of liabiliies
Particulars As at March 31, Asat March 31,
2013 2012
Segment lrbilities T4,104.42 4466635
Borrowings including interest aceraed on homawings 1,07 04 L2IRTI
Inderest Taubality on Optionally Convertible Redeemubbe Prefirenue shure 113,49 s
Statulery dues 903 31495
Provisiom 2R6.07 20643
Total Habilities 76,124.05 46,4%6.59

C.  Geographic Information
Group's operations arc in Indis and therefore, no separate geographical information is disclosed. All the non-current eperating asszt ol the Group are lueated in India

. Infermation sbout majoer contracts
Mo single custinner contributed 10% or e to Group's revenue

(Thir space has been deft Mank inenifonaily)
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(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Related party disclosures

Disclosures i accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 24 on Related Party Disclosures. as identified and centified by the management, are set out as below

Related parties and their relationships

Subsidiary:
Awlv Living Solutions Private Limited

Entities having significant influence over the Group:

DOIT Urban Ventures (India) Private Limited (formerly known as DOIT Enterprises India Private Lunited)

SCI Investments V

Bisque Limued

RAB Enterprises (India) Private Limited
Link Investment Trust

Key Management Personnel

(a) Mr. Amit Ramani (Director)

(b) Mr. Amit Kurnar {Group Secretary)

(e} Mr Jitesh Bhugra { Chief Financial Officer w.e f. March 23, 2022 1o December 9, 2022)
(d} Mr Ravi Dugar { Chief Financial Officer w e f. December 9,2022)

Enterprise over which person described in (iii) above is able to exercise significant influence :
Meube Planning and Design Private Limited

Petra Asset and Facility Management Private Limited

PAFM Secunity Solutions Private Limited

Transactions with the above in the ordinary course of business

The following table provides the total amount of transactions that have been entered into with related parties for the relevant financial year:

Companies in which directors of the
Group are able to exercise control
or have significant influence

Entities having significant influence
over the Group

March 31,2023 | March 31,2022 | March 31,2023 | March 31,2022
Revenue
Meube Planning and Design Private Limited 5368 80.70 - -
Sub-contracting cost
Neube Planning and Design Private Limited 695.44 28022 - -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Neube Planning and Design Private Limited 116168 1,007.05 - -
0.0001% comy y convertible ive preference share of Rs, 100 each (including security
premium)
Bisque Limited - - 1,477.48 -
Link Investment Trust - - 22.50 -
0.0001% pulsory convertible ive participating preference share of Rs. 100 each
(including security premium)
Bisque Limited - - 1,477.48 -
Link Investment Trust - - 22.50 &
* excludes provision for gratuity and compensated absences as these are determined on the basis of actuarial valuation for the Group as a whole.
Tr: tions with key g t per |
Particulars March 31,2023 | March 31,2022
Amit Ramani
Short-term employee benefits (C ion) 45625 125.00
Amit Kumar
Short-term employee benefits (Compensation) 2114 13.19
Share-based payment transactions 9.20 074
Jitesh Bhugra
Short-term employee benefits (Compensation) 41.37 136
Ravi Dugar
Short-term employee benefits (Compensation) 29.00 -
Share-based payment transactions 7.35 -

564,31

Total comy tion paid to key management personnel

140.29
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€. Ouistanding balances with related parties

Companies in which directors of the | Entities having significant influence
Group are able to exercise control over the Group

March 31,2023 | March 31,2022 | March 31,2023 | March 31,2022

Trade receivables
Meube Planming and Design Private Limited 1365 - = -

Other accruals and payables

Neube Planming and Design Private Limited 500.37 449.62 - -
Petra Asset and Facihity Managment Private Linited - 41.68 - -
PAFM Secunity Solutions Private Limited 4 1009 - -

0.0001% compulsory convertible cumulative preference share of Rs. 100 each (including security

premium)

Bisque Limited - = 231473 83725
Link Investment Trust - - 26475 24225
0.0001% compulsory convertible lative participating preference share of Rs. 100 each

(including security premium)

Bisque Limiled - - 1,477 48 -
Link Investment Trust - - 2250 -

Equity component of compulsory convertible debenture
Bisque Limited - - 14.835.09 14,835.09

Closing balances with key management personnel:

Particulars March 31,2023 | March 31,2022

Amit Ramani

Short-term employee benefits {Compensation) 200.00 -
Total compensation payable to key management personnel 200.00 =

Terms and conditions of trasanctions with related parties

All transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length transactions. Outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured and their
settlement occurs in cash. There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables or payables. For the year ended March 31, 2023, the Group has not
recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by the related parties (March 31, 2022: Nil).

9 New Dcli‘@\ 2
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Contingent liabilities and commitments
(i) Contingent liabilities
The Group has reviewed all its pending claims, litigations and other proceedings and has adequately provided for wherever required. The Group docs not

expect the outcome of these proceedings to have a material or adverse effeet on financial position of the Group. Contingent liabilitics of the Group is
disclosed as below .

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Income tax demand*® = 2,269.59

* Income tax demand comprise demand from the Indian tax authorities for payment of additional tax of Rs. Nil (March 31, 2022: Rs. 2,269.59), upon
completion of their tax review for the financial year 2016-17. The tax demand was mainly on account of addition under section 68 of the Income Tax
Act, 1961. The Group, subsequent to year-end, has received order dated May 30, 2023 of nil demand for financial year 2016-17 under appeal filed with
Commissioner of Income Tax (appeals) and therefore, this has been taken as an adjusting subsequent event.

(ii} Commitments

Asat As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for (net of 2,701.27
advances) 3.470.00

Capital management

For the purpose of the Group’s capital management, capital includes issued equity share capital and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity
holders of the Group. The primary objectives of the Group's capital management are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.

The capital structure of the Group consists of total equity of the Group.

The Group’s management reviews the capital structure of the Group on a regular basis. As part of this review, the management considers the cost of
capital and the risks associated with each class of capital requirements and maintenance of adequate liquidity. The Group is not subject to externally
imposed capital requirements. The Group includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, less cash and cash equivalents and other bank
balances.

As at As at

The Group's adjusted net debt to equity ratio was as follows: March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Borrowings 1,092,24 1,210.62
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 559.98% 530.72
Less: Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 1,250.03 32.64
Net debt (717.77) * 647.26
*Represents excess of cash & bank balances over borrowings

Equity sharc capital 3,013.41 3,013.41
Other equity 13,923.00 6.458.72
Total Capital 16,936,41 9472,13
Capital and net debt 16,218.64 10,119.39
Gearing ratio 0.00% 6.40%

(This space has been left blank intentionally) |- j Il\
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35 Employee benefits

{a) Other long-term benefits

The Group has a defined benefit leave encashment plan for its employees. Under this plan, they are entitled to encashment of carned leaves subjest o certain limits and other

conditions specified (or the same: The is leave encasl have been provided on the basis of actuarial viluation

(b} Defined contribution plans

The Group makes Provident Fund contributions to defined benefit plan for qualifving employees. Under the Schemes, the Group is required to contribute o specified
pereentage of the payroll costs 1o fund the henefits. The contributions payable to these plans by the Group are at rates specified in the rules of the schemes.

Particolars

Emplayers contribution to provident fund
Emplayers ¢ ibution to employee state | ¢ scheme
Others

Tortal

[4] Defined benefit plans

Yeur ended Yeur ended
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022

372.03 179.71
93.47 35.90
090 413

472,40 219.74

The Group's gratuity scheme provide for lump sum payment to vested cmplayees at retirement, death while in employment or on termination of employment of an amount
cquivalent 1o 15 days basic salary for cach completed year of serviee or part thercof in excess of six months in terms of provisions of Gatuily Act, 1972, Viesting occurs upon

eompletion of five vears of service,

The present value of defined benefit obligation and the related current scrvice cost were measured using the projected unit eredit method with actuarial valuations being

carried out at each Consolidated balance sheet date,

The following table ises the comy of net benefit expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss and the recognised in the Consolidated
halance sheet: .
(i) Amount recogniscd § of Profit and Loss and ensive income:
Particulars Year ended Year ended
Mareh 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Rental and others Facility Rental and Facility
4 others t
Current service cost 3442 1035 3R.85 378
Tast service cost - - - -
Nel interest expense 13.96 0.38 281 0.37
Interest expense (asset ceilinglonerous liability) - - - =
Amount recognised in Statement of profit and loss 48.38 10.73 47.66 4.15
Remeasurement of defined benefit liability:
Actuarial {gain)loss from changes in demograhic pti -16.01 {1.20) - ™
Actuarial (gain)/loss from ch in financial pli (LRI (0.09) 724 =
Actuarial (gain}loss from experience adjustments 16.94 4,28 17.88 {3.97)
R ement (gains)/losses in other comprehensive income .03 2.99 25.12 (3.97)
(i1
As at Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Rental and others Facility Rental and Facility
management others management
Fair value of plan asscts 4 % = =
Defined benefit vbligation 21641 18.96 192,28 5.23
Effect of asset ceiling/onerous liability - - - -
Net defined asset / (liability) recognised in the C lidated balance sheer 216.41 18.96 192.28 5.23
Classified as non-current 142.71 18.82 150.53 5.17
Classified as current 73.70 0.14 41.75 .06
216.41 18.96 192.28 523
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(v)

(i)

Particulars As at As af
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Rental and others Facility Rental and Faeility
uthers I
Defined henefit ohligation at beginning of the year 192,28 523 12753
Current service cosl 3442 10.33 B85 378
Acquisittion adjustment - (5.04) 5.05
ast service cost - - - -
Interest expense 13.96 0.3% KR 037
Remeasurement {gains)losscs 0.03 3.0 251 {3.97)
Benefits paid (24.28) - (2.9%) -
Defined benefit obligation at end of the year 216.41 18.96 192.28 5.23
Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As al March 31,2022
Rental and others Facility Rental and Facility
nmagement others management
Diseaunt rate (in %) 139 739 7.26 7.26
Future salary increase (in %) 12.00% 12.00% 12.00% 1 2000
Monality rates inclusive of provision for disability 100% of IALM - 100% of TALM  100% of IALM  100% of IALM
(2012 - 14) (2012 - 14) (2012 14) (2012 - 14}
Retirement age {in years) i) 000 60 0
Estimate of amount of contribution in the immediate next year 51.01 15.69 57.51 6.74
Anrition at ages Withdrawal Rate Withdrawal Withdrawal Withdrawal
(%a) Rate (%) Rate (%) Rate (%)
Up to 30 Yeuars 41% 8% 30 51%
From 31 to 44 years 41% 58% 3% 51%
Above 44 years 41% 8% 30% 5%
The discount rate is based on the prevailing markel yields of Government of India securities as at the Consolidated balance sheet date for the d term of obligations. The

estimate of futlure salary increases considered, takes into account the inflation, semiority, promotion, increments and other relevant factors,

Sensitivity Analysis
Significant actuarial ptions lor the determination of the defined obligation are discount rate, expeaied salary increase and mortality. The sensitivity analyses below have
been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective ussumptions oceurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant.

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Crratuiny plan Rental and others Facility Rental and Facility

g athers gement
Effect of +50 basis points in rate of discounting (2.23) (0.37) (2.99) (0.11)
Effect of -50 basis points in rate of discounting 228 038 3lo 0.1
Efect of +50 basis points in rate of salary increasce 1.77 (36 248 011
Effect of -50 basis points in rate of salary increase 11.74) ({1L35) 12.44) {0.11)

The sensitivity unulysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would
aceur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated,

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligation has been calculated using the projected unit eredit method at the
end of the reporting period, which is the same as that applied in caleulating the defined benefit obligation liability recognised in the Consolidated balance sheet.

There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years.

The following payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in fature years:

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31,2022
Rental and others Facility Rental and Facility
nthers manag

Within the next 12 months {next annual reporting year) 7300 0.14 T.24 .06
Between 2 and 5 years 120004 556 10059 0.54
Between 5 and 10 years 22,67 13.26 7545 4.33
Tutal expected payments 216.41 18.96 192.28 5.23
The average duration ol the defined bencfit plan obligation at the eod of the reporling year is: Space: 183 years and Care: 1,28 years (March 31, 2022; Space: 2.74 years and

Care: 140 years).
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Risk exposure:
Through its defined benelit plans, the Group is exposed 1o 2 number aof risks. the mostsignificant of which are detaled below:

Interest Risk: The plan exposes the Group to the nsk of fall in interest rates. A Gall m interest rates will result in an increase in the ultimate cost of providing the above benefit
and will thus result moan merease in the value of the Babihity {as shown in Consolidated Hancial statements).

Liguidity Ri
meet the liabi

This is the risk that the Group is not able to meet the short-term gratuity payouts. This may arise due to non availability of enough cash / cash equivalent 1o
s or holding ofilliquid assets not being suld in time.

Salary Esealation Risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan is caleulated with the pion of salary i rate of plan particiy in future. Deviation in the
rate of inerease of salary in future for plan participants from the rage of increase in salary used 1o determine the present value of obligation will have a bearing on the plan's
lsability.

Demographic Risk: The Group has used cerlain mortality and atrilion assumptions in valuation of the liability. The Group is exposed to the risk of actual experience Wwming
oul o be worse comparced to the assumption.

Regulatory Risk: Grawity benefit is paid in accordance with the requirements of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 (us amended from time to time). There is u risk of change
in regulations requiring higher gratuity payouts {e.g. Increase in the maximum linut on gratuity of Rs. 2,000,000}
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neizl instruments — Fair valoes and risk management

A. Fair value of financial assets and liabilities that are not measured at fair value (but fair value disclosures are required)
Set out below 15 a comparison by elass of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Group's financial instruments, other than thase with carrying amounts that are reasonable approximations
of farr values

Carrving Values Fair Values
Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31, As at March 31, As at March 31,
2023 2022 2023 2022
Financial assets
Investment i Mutual Funds - 1,639 40 - 1,639.40
The management assessed that security deposits, loans to employee including interest d, cash and cash equivalents, term deposit includingother bank balances, trade receivables, other

receivables, Balance in payment gateway, short term borrowings, trade payables & retention money approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the shor-term maturitics of these

B. Fair value hierarchy

The Group uses the following hierarchy for deterrmining and diselosing the fair value of financial mstruments by valuation technigue -

Measurement of Fair Value

Level 1: Level | h hy includes fi ial i | using quoted prices. This includes listed equity instruments, traded bonds and mutual funds that have quoted price. The
farr value of all equity instruments (including bonds) which are traded in the stock exchanges is valued using the closing price as at the reporting period.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, traded bonds, over-the counter derivatives) is determined using valuation techmiques
which maxtmise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to far value an instrument are observable, the
mstrument 15 included in level 2.

Level 3: If ane or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. This is the case for unlisted equity securities.

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2023:

Quoted prices in Significant Significant
aclive markets  observable inputs unobservable
inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3} Total
Assets measured at fair value:
Investment in mutual funds 7 2 " 5

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assels & liabilities as at March 31, 2022:

Quaoted prices in Significant Significant
active markets  observable inputs uniobservable
inputs
(Level 1) {Level 2) (Level 3) Total
Assets measured at fair value:
Investment in mutual funds 1,639 40 - - 1,639.40
C. Financial risk management
The Group has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:
i. Credit risk
Credit risk 15 the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or party to a fi al i fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Group's

receivables from customers and loans, The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk with any counterparty

Trade Receivables and Loans

Customer credit risk is managed by the respective department subject to Group's policy, procedures and contral relating to credit risk . Credit quality of a
customer is assessed based on individual credit limits as defined by the Group. Outstanding customer receivables are reularly monitored. As at March 31, 2023, the top 10 customers
accounted for 57% (March 31, 2022 53%) of all the receivables outstanding,

Wlichad

Less than 180 More than 180 Total

days days

As at March 31, 2023

Giross earrying amount (A) 4,024 .64 950,98 497562
Expected credit lass {B) 16.30 111.43 127.73
Net carrying amount (A-B) 4,008.34 839.55 4,847.88
As at March 31, 2022

Gross carrying amount {A) 291411 240 40 3,154.51
Expected credit loss (B) - 8283 32.85

MNet carrying amount (A-B) 2,914.11 157.55 3,071.66
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The ageing analvsis of trade recenvables as of the reporting date 15 as follows

Trade receivables
As at Particulars Current but not due
0-90 days 90-180 days 180-360 days 1-2 year 2-3 year >3 year Total
ECL rate 0.00% 0.00%| 2.63%| 5.76%| 34 88% 100 00%| 0.00%|
March 31.  |Gross carrying amount 137.11 3,268.21 61932 Th4 81 182 38 3.78 - 4,975.61
2023 ECL simphfied approach - - 16 30 44 03 63,62 378 - 127.73
Net carrying amount 137,11 3.268.21 603.02 720.77 118.77 - - 4,847.88
As at Particulars Current but not due Featesceiyables
0-90 days 90-180 days 180-360 days 1-2 year 2-3 year =3 year Total
ECL rate 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%| 22.57% 41.71% 100.00%) 100.00%
March 31, |Gross carrying amount 30.73 2,519.09 364.29 15473 6473 15.07 5.87 3,154.51
2022 ECL simplified approach - - - 3492 27.00 15.07 5.87 82.86
Net carrying amount 3073 2,519.09 36429 119.81 371.73 - - 3,071.66
The Group has provision of Rs.127.73 (March 31, 2022 Rs.82.85) for trade receivables
ii. Liguidity risk
Liquidity risk 1s the risk that the Group will difficulty in the obh d with its i | liahilities that are settled by delrvering cash or another financial asset,

The Group's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed
conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group’s reputation

Prudent liquidity rigk implies sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of funding through an adequate amount of e d credit facilities to

meet obligations when due and to close out market positions,

Maturities of financial liabilities

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of fi ial liabilities at the reporting date. The are gross and undiscounted, and excluding « | interest pay the
impact of netling agreements
Contractual cash flows

Total Upte 1 year Between 1 and 2 Between 2and 5 More than 5
As at March 31, 2023 years years years
Berrowings including interest thereon* 1.243.41 73695 506.46 - -
Lease habilities 67,049 68 17,069.64 15,167 61 31,207.79 3,604.64
Employee related hability 961 84 961 84 - - -
Trade Payables 5,082.75 508275 - - -
Others payables 3,02739 3,027.39 - - -
5 ity deposit 1 from 14,560.74 372625 233843 7.796.06 T00.00

Contractual cash flows

Total Upto 1 year Between 1 and 2 Between 2and 5 More than 5
As at March 31, 2022 years vears years
Borrowings including interest thereon® 1,46031 51585 438.00 50646 -
Lease liabilities 3821959 11,407.10 10,652.48 14,000.47 2,159.54
Employee related liability 57866 578.66 - - -
Trade Payables 4.511.61 4,511.61 - - -
Others payables 1,344.62 1,344 62 - - -
Security deposit received from customer 851557 278552 1,468 44 2,87362 1,387.99

* Borrowing includes amount of bank overdraft which is repayable on demand.
The interest payments on variable interest rate loans in the table above reflect current interest rates at the reporting date and these amounts may change as market interest rates change.

ili. Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices ~ such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates — will affect the Group's income or the value of ils holdings of financial
instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the refurn. The Group
does not uses derivatives to manage market rigks

iv. Currency risk
The currency risk is the exchange-rate risk, arises from the change in price of one currency in relation te another, The Group is not
hence there is no associated currency risk

i 1o foreign

v. Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates, The Group exposure to the
risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Group's long-term debt oblig: with fl g interest rates. The Group having a fixed loans and borrowings.

{Thix space has been intentionally lefi blank)
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37 Employees' stock option plan

The sharcholders of the Group approved “Awfis Employces” Stock Option Scheme 20157 ('EDSOP 2015 at the Extraordinary General
Meeting held on on June 15, 2015 to grant a maximum of not exceeding 5% of the equity share capital of the Group to specified categories of
employces of the Group. Each option granted and vested under EDSOP 2015 shall entitle the holder to acquire one equity share of face value of
Rs. 10 each of the Group.

The fair value of the share options is estimated at the grant date using the Black- Scholes option pricing model, taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which the share options were granted. However, the below performance condition is only considered in determining the
number of instruments that will ultimately vest,

(A) Details of options granted under EDSOP 2015* arc as below:

Grant Grant date  Number of Number of Exercise Fair value at
Options options Price grant date (in
granted outstanding (in INR) INR)

I st Grant 16-Tun-15 2,93,507 - 10.00 19.18

87,317 11,830 10.00 19.37

11,929 11,929 10.00 19.37

3,711 3,711 10.00 19.38

2nd Grant 02-Jan-16 23,860 11,930 10.00 19.07
23,860 11,930 10.00 19.10

23,858 11,929 10.00 19.07

7422 3,711 10.00 19.18

3rd Grant 25-Jul-16 214,408 32,396 10.00 19.07
281,577 93,859 10.00 19.10

1,28,365 53,746 10.00 19.07

4th Grant 25-Feb-17 23,860 - 27.78 19.07
23,860 - 27.78 19.04

23,858 - 27.78 19.05

23,858 - 27.78 19.15

Sth Grant 25-Feb-17 1,75,200 62,101 10.00 19.04
6th Grant 01-Apr-19 55,000 55,000 27.78 139.77
55,000 55,000 27.78 140.21

55,000 55,000 27.78 140.48

55,000 53,750 27.78 140.60

Tth Grant 01-0ct-20 46,582 33,837 54.00 138.64
46,582 30,718 54.00 139.08

46,582 26,660 54.00 139.10

46,477 26,604 54.00 139.14

8th Grant 01-Apr-21 2,500 2,500 27.78 139.77
2,500 - 27.78 139.79

2,500 - 27.78 139.77

2,500 - 27.78 139.76

9th Grant 01-Jul-22 6,000 6,000 27.21 127.72
3,000 3,000 27.41 129.21

3,000 3,000 27.21 130.61

10th Grant 01-Jul-22 75,888 75,888 90.00 99.72
75,887 75,887 90.00 104.25

11th Grant 01-Jul-22 3,61.655 2,93,739 120.00 90.00
3.61.680 2,93,762 120.00 95.00

12th Grant 01-Jul-22 6,000 - 162.00 78.95
6,000 - 162.00 8547

6,000 - 162.00 91.1%

6,000 - 162.00 96.50

13th Grant 09-Dee-22 12,500 12,500 144.00 83.37
12,500 12,500 144,00 89,51

12,500 12,500 144,00 94 08

12,500 12,500 144.00 99 86
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(B) The movement of stock options during the period/year (in No's)® :

Particulars As at March WAEP As at March WAEP
31,2023 31,2022

Balance at the beginning of the year 6,85.032 25.34 7.63,190 25.07
Granted during the year 961,110 116.40 10,000 10.00
Vested/exercisable during the year 86,968 37.04 88,837 37.77
Forfeiture/Lapsed 1,96,625 115,58 88,158 54.00
Exercised during the year - - - -
Balance at the end of the year 14,49.517 74.27 6,85,032 25.34

{C) Disclosures as per IND AS 102 for outstanding options

Particulars As at Mareh  As at March
31,2023 31,2022
Weighted average exercise price for outstanding options 74.27 2534
Weighted average remaiming contractual life for outstanding options (in years) .86 0.34
Range of exercise prices for outstanding options 10.00-144.00  10.00-54.00

(D) The key assumption used to estimate the fair value of stock option as on grant date:

Grant Date Dividend Risk-free interest Expected life Expected
Yield rate of options  volatility
granted in
years
01-Jul-22 0.00% 7.38% 6 50.00%
0.00% 7.44% ¥ 50.00%
0.00% 7.51% § 50.00%
0.00% 7.58% 9 50.00%
09-Dec-22 0.00% 7.38% 6 50.00%
0.00% 7.44% 7 50.00%
0.00% 7.51% 8 50.00%
0.00% 7.58% 9 50.00%
01-Apr-21 0.00% 7.16% 11 85.00%
0.00% 7.13% 12 85.00%
0.00% 7.02% 13 85.00%
0.00% 7.05% 14 85.00%

*The expected life of the stock is based on historical data and current expectations and is not necessarily indicative of exercise patterns that
may occur. The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the historical volatility over a period similar to the life of the options is indicative

of future trends, which may also not necessarily be the actual outcome. T
ol
VR

(This space has been lefi blank intentionally)
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38

Leases

(a) Group as lessee

The Group leases office premises. These leases typically run for 5-10 years which is further extendable on mutual agreement by both

lessor and lessee.

Information about the leascs for which the Group is a lessee is presented below:

Right-of-use assets:

Set out below are the carrying amounts of Right-of-use assets and the movement during the year:

Particulars Amount
Total right of use as at April 1, 2021 20,289.87
Addition during the year 8.781.54
Deletion during the year %
Depreciation (7,152.09)
Lease modification (54.24)
Total right of usc as at March 31, 2022 21,865.08
Addition during the year 31,101.07
Depreciation (11,409.46)
Lease modification (302.41)
Lease termination (808.63)
Total right of use as at March 31, 2023 40,445.65
Lease liabilities:
Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movement during the year:
Particulars Amount
Total lease liabilities as at April 1, 2021 25,879.86
Addition during the year 8,333.66
Deletion during the year (81.94)
Aceretion of interest 4.277.71
Payments (including interest) (8,857.40)
COVID-19 related rent concessions (957.19)
Total lease liabilities as at March 31, 2022 28,594.70
Addition during the year 29,717.42
Deletion during the year .
Accretion of interest 6,325.29
Payments (including interest) (13,990.95)
COVID-19 related rent concessions -
Lease modification (438.47)
Lease termination (1,312.60)
Total lease liabilities as at March 31, 2023 48,895.39
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is given in Note 36 in the ‘Liquidity risk’ section.
As at As at

March 31,2023  March 31, 2022
Current 11,196.35 9,374.78
Non-current 37.699.04 19,219.92

48,895.39 28,594.70

The effective interest rate for lease liabilities is 13% (March 31, 2022: 13%;)
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Below are the amounts recognised by the Group in the statement of profit and loss:

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 11.409.46 7,152.09
Interest on lease liabilities 6.325.29 4.277.71
Variable lease payments not included in the measurement of lease liabilities 5,002.39 1,928.33
Expenses relating to leases of low-value assets and short-term leases 67.96 80.43
Total 22,805.10 13,438.56
Below is the amount recognised by the Group in the statement of cash flows:
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31,2023  March 31, 2022
Cash outflow included in financing activity for repayment of principal during the year 7,666 4,579.69
Cash outflow included in financing activity for repayment of interest during the year 6,325 4,277.71

Cash flows from operating activities include cash flows from short-term lease and leases of low-value assets, Cash flows from
financing activities include the payment of interest and the principal portion of lease liabilities.

The Group has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. These options are negotiated by management to
provide flexibility in managing the leased-asset portfolio and align with the Group’s business needs. Management exercises
significant judgement in determining whether these extension and termination options are reasonably certain to be exercised.

(b} Group as lessor
The Group has given its office premises through operating lease arrangements, Income from operating leases is recognised as revenue

on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Lease income of Rs. 38,236.76 (March 31; 2022: Rs. 18,438.69) has been recognised in revenue from operation in the statement of
profit or loss.

Future minimum rentals receivable under non-cancellable operating leases as at 31 March are as follows:

Year ended Year ended
March 31,2023  March 31, 2022
Within one year 6.056.39 3,851.49
Between 1 and 2 years 16,157.43 4,616.86
Between 2 and 3 years 19,890.08 3,286.30
Between 3 and 4 years 1,448.31 1,503.73
Between 4 and 5 years 5,999.82 999.45

More than five years o = p

(This space has been left blank intentionally)
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39  Unrecognised tax assets
The Group has brought forward losses under the Income-tax Act, 1961. Deferred tax has not been recognized since it is not probable
that the taxable profits will be available against which the unutilized tax losses and temporary differences can be utilized, as assessed
as at March 31, 2023,
(a) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's domestic tax rate for the year ended March 31, 2023
and March 31, 2022:

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Loss for the year (4,663.67) (5,715.58)
At India's statutory income tax rate of 25.17% (March 31, 2022 25.17%) (1,173.85) (1,438.61)
Losses on which deferred tax assets not recognized 1,173.85 1.438.61
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss - -
Tax as per books
Current tax - -
Tax adjustment relating to prior years < -
Deferred tax - -
(b) Expiry dates of unused tax losses
Year ending March 31, As of March 31, As of March 31, As of March 31, As of March 31,
2023 2023 tax impact @ 2022 2022 tax impact @
25.17% 25.17%
2024 678.49 170.78 678.49 170.78
2025 1,946.50 489.93 1,946.50 489.93
2026 4,679.63 1,177.86 4.679.63 1,177.86
2027 2,711.92 682.59 2,711.92 682.59
2028 1,323.39 333.10 1,323.39 333.10
2029 878.93 221.23 878.93 221.23
2030 1,032.97 260.00 - -
Total 13,251.83 3,335.49 12,218.86 3,075.49

Unlimited period available for unabsorbed depreciation amounting to 6,961.00 (March 31, 2022: 4,886.51). Related tax impact is Rs
1,752.08 (March 31, 2022: Rs 1,229.93).

(This space has been left blank intentionally)
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400 Disclosures mandated by Schedule 11 of Companies Act 2013, by way of additional information:

Year ended March 31, 2023

Name of entities Net Assets i.e. total assets minus total Share in Loss

Share in other Comprehensive

Share in total Comprehensive Loss

linbilities Income
Asa Yaof Amaount Asa%of  Amount Asa % of Antount As a % of Amount
eonsolidated net consolidated consolidated OCI consolidated
Assels loss comprehensive loss
Parent:
Awfis Space Solutions Private Limited 100 26% 16,981 10 B9.31% (4.034,26) 100.00% {3.02) 9937% (4,637 28)
Subsidiary:
Awliv living Solutions Private Limited 0.12% 20.31 0.63% (29.41) 0.00% - 0.63% (29.63)
Adjustment arising out of consolidation -0.38% (65.00) 0.00% . 0.00% - 0.00% -
Tatal 100%: 16,936.41 1004%% (4.663.67) 100% (3.02) 100% (4,666.91)
Year ended March 31, 2022
Name of entities Net Assets ie. total assets minus total Share in Loss Share in other Comprehensive Share in total Comprehensive Loss
Liabilities Income
Asa % of Amount Asa%of  Amount Asa % of Amount Asa % of Amount
consolidated net consolidated consolidated OCI consolidated total
assets loss comprehensive loss
Parent:
Awfis Space Solutions Private Limited 100.16% 948740  99.82% (5,705.05) 100.00% (21.15) 99.82% {5,726.20)
Subsidiary:
Awliv living Solutions Private Limited 026% 24.73 0.18% (10:53) 0.00% - 0.18% (10.54)
Adjustment ansing out of consolidation -0.42% {40.00) 0.00% - 0.00% - 0008 -
Total 100% 9.472.13 100%: (5,715.58) 100% {21.15) 100% (5,736.73)
41 The Code on Social Security 2020 (Code), which received the P ial Assent on September 28, 2020, sub nine laws relating to social security, retirement and employee benefits, including
the Employee Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 and the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, The effective date of the Code is yet to be riotified. The Group will assess the impact
of the Code when it comes into effect and will record related impact therean
42 Other statutory information

(i) The Group does not have any Benami property,
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder,

where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Group for holding any Benami property under the Benami Transactions

(ii) The Group has balance with the below-mentioned companies struck off under section 248 of Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act. 1956,

Name of the Struck off Group Nature of Relationship with the Balance outstanding®
Transaction struck off Group
March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022
Vhinge Media Private Limited Trade Receivables Customer - (.03)
LS Software Private Limited Trade Receivables Customer - (014}
INDIAN BOOK OF RECORDS PRIVATE LIMITED Trade Receivables Customer 002 -
Consolidated Services (India) Trade Payables Vendor {2.00) -
A K.Construction & Interior Pvt. Ltd Trade Payables Vendor (0.19) -
TECHNO TRENDS SMART SOLUTIONS PRIVATE Trade Payables Vendor (0.12) -
DEEPA SALES PRIVATE LTD Trade Payables Vendor (0.10) -
DELICIOUS CASHEW Group PRIVATE LIMITED Trade Payables Vendor (12.61) -
ITC Ltd- Chola (Welcome Hotel Chennai} Trade Payables Vendor (0.12) -
MALROX ENGINEERING PRIVATE LIMITED Trade Payables Vendor (14.29) -
MEGA FIRE RESCUE PRIVATE LIMITED Trade Payables Vendor (0.74) -
PHONOGRAPHIC PERFORMANCE LTD Trade Payables Vendor (3.79) -
RANA ENTERPRISES INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED Trade Payables Vendor 1.13 -
ROY ENTERPRISE PRIVATE LIMITED Trade Payables Vendor (0.16) -
SALUJA ELECTRONICS PVT. LTD. Trade Payables Vendor (0,52) -
SMART EXTERIORS PRIVATE LIMITED Trade Payables Vendor {1.71) -
SMS ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED Trade Payables Vendor (0.43) -
TRUST ELECTRONICS PVT LTD Trade Payables Vendor (0.12) -
VISHNU ELECTRICALS PRIVATE LIMITED ‘Trade Payables Vendor 1.05 -
WEATHER CONTROL ENGINEERS AND Trade Payables Vendor (0.40) -
FRESH BAKERS PRIVATE LIMITED (OPC) Trade Payables Vendor (0.47) -

* Megative balances represent advances from customer

(iii) The Group do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period,

(iv) The Group has not traded or invested in Cryptocurrency transactions / balances or Virtual Currency during the financial year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022,

d funds to | diaries for further ad

(v} The Group have not advanced or loaned or i
understanding that the Ultimate beneficiaries shall:

ing to any other person(s) or entity(ies). including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Group (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantec, security or the like 1o or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaties,

(vi) The Group has not received any funds or further advances in form of any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including guarantee to the Ultimate t

ultimate beneficiaries shall

with the under that the

{a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Group {Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

(vii) The Group has not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income

Tax Act. 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1967),

(viit} The Company has not been declared as a wilful defaulter by its lenders
{ix) The Company is not required to submit quarterly returms with its lenders
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43 Subsequent events

(i} The Board of Directors of the Group in their board meeting dated October 12, 2022 approved the scheme of selective reduction of capital by paying off the identificd shareholders the fair value of
the shareholding held by them in the Group, by utilizing the surplus funds being made available by new investor (investors) and cancellation/extingushment of the shareholding held by the said
identified shareholders in the Group The identified sharcholders have agreed to such capital reduction provided the scheme is impl d and the consideration is paid to the ldentified
Shareholders effective and no later than 30 days of the receipt of the order the National Group Law Tribunal Delhi (INCLT). Consequently. the Group filed a petition befire the National Group Law
Tribunal Defhi (NCLT) under Section 66 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with National Group Law Tribunal {Procedure for Reduction of Share Capital of Group) Rules, 2016 bearing Group
Petition No. 204/ND/2022 for reduction of share capital wherein the Group has proposed a reduction, cancellation and extinguishment of the issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital from Rs
21,651.81 divided into 30,134,112 Equity Shares of Rs 10 each and 18,638,399 Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares {*Preference Shares”) of Rs 100 each to Rs 17.906.05 divided into
15,042,220 Equity Shares of Rs 10 each and 16,401,836 Preference Shares of Rs 100 each by cancelling and extinguishing an aggregate of 15,091,892 Equity Shares of Rs 10 each and 2,236,563
Preference Shares of Rs 100 each

The NCLT had reserved the order on March 7, 2023 and consequently, a sum of Rs. 24,999 93 is deposited by the investors in the escrow accounts The NCLT order for reduction of aforesaid
share capital was received by the Group on May 26, 2023. The transaction related 1o cancellation/extingushment of shares of idenlificd shareholders has been d on June 4, 2023 pursuant
ta the directions of NCLT,

(i) The Board of Directors of Company vide its lution dated September 2. 2023, had approved to explore and evaluate various oppe ities for raising funds including but not limited to an
initial public offering (“IPO") of equity shares of the Company or rights issue or preferential allotment.

44 Previous year figures have been reg dfreclassified, where Y, 1o confirm to this vear's classification
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